
* * * * PUBLIC NOTICE * * * *

NOTICE OF A CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING
A WORKSHOP SESSION

OF THE CITY OF CORINTH
Thursday, September 6, 2018, 5:30 P.M.

CITY HALL - 3300 CORINTH PARKWAY

CALL TO ORDER:

WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA

1. Discuss Regular Meeting Items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed
session items as set forth in the Closed Session agenda items below.

2. Hold a discussion on the Texas Municipal League Legislative update.

3. Receive a report, hold a discussion, and provide staff direction on the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Annual
Program of Services and Capital Improvement Program.

ADJOURN WORKSHOP SESSION

*NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a Regular Session of the Corinth City Council to be held at Corinth City Hall
located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The agenda is as follows:

CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE:
"Honor the Texas Flag: I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible".

PRESENTATION:

Receive a Presentation on the STAR Communities Certification.

Receive a Presentation on the SolSmart Designation.

CONSENT AGENDA
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one motion.
Should the Mayor, a Councilmember, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will be removed
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.

1. Consider and act on minutes from the August 2, 2018 Workshop Session.
1



1. Consider and act on minutes from the August 2, 2018 Workshop Session.

2. Consider and act on minutes from the August 2, 2018 Regular Session.

3. Consider and act on minutes from the August 9, 2018 Workshop Session.

4. Consider and act on minutes from the August 9, 2018 Special Session.

5. Consider and act on minutes from the August 16, 2018 Workshop Session.

6. Consider and act on minutes from the August 16, 2018 Regular Session.

7. Consider and act on a Resolution approving a negotiated settlement between the Atmos Steering
Committee and Atmos Energy Corp, Mid-Tex Division regarding the company's 2018 Rate Review
Mechanism filings.

CITIZENS  COMMENTS
In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will be
limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council and may
be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input form if you
desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be addressed to the
Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of Ordinance of the City
of Corinth.

PUBLIC HEARING

8. Hold a public hearing to receive community input on the FY 2018-2019 Annual Program of Services
(Budget).

9. Hold a public hearing on a proposal to consider a tax rate, which will exceed the lower of the rollback rate
or the effective tax rate and will increase total tax revenues from properties on the tax roll in the preceding
tax year by 9.17 percent.

COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
The purpose of this section is to allow each councilmember the opportunity to provide general updates and/or
comments to fellow councilmembers, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, in accordance
with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Councilmember may direct that an item be
added as a business item to any future agenda.

CLOSED SESSION
The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any of the
above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third
person.

a. Consider acquisition of Right-of-way at 1708 Post Oak Drive.
2



b. Consider acquisition of Right-of-way at 2101 Lake Sharon Blvd.

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated litigation;
and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body under the
Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts with chapter 551.

a. MCM Contract for the Lake Sharon Roadway Extension

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.

a. City Manager evaluation

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental
body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or
near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic
development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect.

After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney on
any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not.

RECONVENE  IN  OPEN  SESSION  TO  TAKE  ACTION, IF NECESSARY,  ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS.

ADJOURN:

Posted this 31st day of August, 2018 at 11:30 a.m. on the bulletin board at Corinth City Hall.

________________________________
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary
City of Corinth, Texas

3

Kimberly Pence



   
    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    2.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 09/06/2018  
Title: Legislative Briefing
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Hold a discussion on the Texas Municipal League Legislative update.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The Texas Municipal League changed the legislative position process in anticipation of the 2019 session by
consolidating the three committees (personnel, land use and utilities). The committee met on August 23 & 24.
Following are the recommended positions. These positions will be presented to the board and the membership in
October.

The second memo is based on positions adopted by the utility steering committees (Oncor and Atmos).

RECOMMENDATION
N/A

Attachments
Summary/Actions 
Legislative Update 

4



Municipal Policy Summit 
Summary of Actions 
August 23-24, 2018 

 
 
Harmful Legislation in General/Preemption 
 
The Summit delegates voted to recommend that the League: 
 

1. oppose legislation that would erode municipal authority in any way, would impose an 
unfunded mandate, or would otherwise be detrimental to cities. 

 
2. oppose legislation that would provide for state preemption of municipal authority in general.   

 
Revenue and Finance 
 
The Summit delegates voted to recommend that the League: 
 

1. oppose legislation that would impose a revenue and/or tax cap of any type, including a 
reduced rollback rate, mandatory tax rate ratification elections, lowered rollback petition 
requirements, limitations on overall city expenditures, exclusion of the new property 
adjustment in effective rate and rollback rate calculations, or legislation that lowers the 
rollback rate and gives a city council the option to re-raise the rollback rate.  

 
2. oppose legislation that would negatively expand appraisal caps but take no position on 

legislation that would authorize a council-option reduction in the current ten-percent cap on 
annual appraisal growth.  

 
3. support legislation that would simplify the effective tax rate calculation for notice purposes 

only, provided the legislation would have no effect on either the underlying effective tax rate 
and rollback tax rate calculations themselves, or upon the hold harmless exemptions to those 
rates.  

 
4. support legislation extending the sunset date for Chapter 312 tax abatement authority only if 

the business lobby groups whose members benefit from tax abatement agreements refrain 
from any support for harmful revenue and expenditure caps.  

 
5. oppose legislation that would impose new property tax or sales tax exemptions that 

substantially erode the tax base.  
 

6. support: (1) legislation that would make beneficial amendments to the equity appraisal 
statute; (2) legislation that would close the “dark store” theory of appraisal loophole; and (3) 
legislation that would require mandatory disclosure of real estate sales prices.  

 
7. support: (1) legislation that would authorize a council-option property tax exemption of a 

portion of the appraised value of property damaged by a disaster; and (2) legislation that 

5



would authorize a council-option city homestead exemption expressed as a percentage or 
flat-dollar amount.  

 
8. support legislation that would convert the sales tax reallocation process from a ministerial 

process into a more formalized administrative process. 
 

9. with regard to economic development: (1) take no position on legislation that would broaden 
the authority of Type A or Type B economic development corporations; and (2) oppose 
legislation that would limit the authority of Type A or Type B economic development 
corporations statewide, but take no position on legislation that is regional in scope and that 
is supported by some cities in that region.  

 
10. oppose legislation that would erode the ability of a city to issue debt. 

 
11. oppose legislation that would limit or eliminate the current flexibility of the Major Events 

Reimbursement Program as a tool for cities to attract or host major events and conventions. 
 
Regulation of Development 
 
The Summit delegates voted to recommend that the League: 
 

1. oppose legislation that would erode municipal authority related to development matters, 
including with respect to the following issues:  (1) annexation, (2) eminent domain, (3) 
zoning, (4) regulatory takings; (5) building codes, (6) tree preservation, and (7) short-term 
rentals. 

 
2. support legislation that would expand municipal annexation authority. 

 
3. support legislation that would authorize a city council to opt-in to requiring residential fire 

sprinklers in newly constructed single-family dwellings. 
 
Utilities and Transportation 
 
The Summit delegates voted to recommend that the League: 
 

1. oppose state or federal legislation or rules that would erode the authority of a city to be 
adequately compensated for the use of its rights-of-way and/or erode municipal authority 
over the management and control of rights-of-way.  

 
2. support legislation that would: (1) allow for greater flexibility by cities to fund local 

transportation projects; (2) amend or otherwise modify state law to help cities fund 
transportation projects; or (3) provide cities with additional funding options and resources to 
address transportation needs that the state and federal governments are unable or unwilling 
to address. 

 
3. support legislation that would: (1) provide additional funding to the Texas Department of 

Transportation for transportation projects that would benefit cities; and (2) provide local, 

6



state, and federal transportation funding for rail as one component of transportation 
infrastructure.  
 

4. oppose legislation that would erode municipal authority over billboards or place any 
unfunded mandate on cities relating to billboards. 

 
Miscellaneous (Public Safety, Personnel, Elections, Municipal Court, Member-
Submitted Items): 
 
The Summit delegates voted to recommend that the League: 
 

1. take no position on legislation that would standardize red light photo enforcement systems, 
so long as the underlying authority is not eliminated. (Further, the committee recommends 
that TML defer to the Texas Red Light Coalition on more detailed matters relating to 
revisions to red light camera policy.) 

 
2. take no position on legislation that would amend the affected provisions of the Texas 

Government Code relating to the Texas Municipal Retirement System to allow for greater 
flexibility in retiree pension increases and provide for a forgiveness provision for cities that 
stopped the regular repeating COLA payments without reference to a cost of living index. 

 
3. oppose legislation that would further erode local control as it pertains to retirement issues. 

 
4. oppose legislation that would substantively change or expand the scope of the current 

disease presumption law, unless doing so is supported by reputable, independent scientific 
research. 

 
5. oppose legislation that would require candidates for city office to declare party affiliation in 

order to run for office.  
 

6. oppose legislation that would eliminate any of the current uniform election dates.  
 

7. in relation to municipal courts: (1) oppose legislation that would impose additional state fees 
or costs on municipal court convictions or require municipal courts to collect fine revenue 
for the state; and (2) support legislation that would allow a more equitable way of 
distributing court fines that would result a higher percentage of fines being kept local, where 
the laws are enforced, the court is held, and the fines collected.  

 
8. oppose legislation that would: (1) require the reporting of lobbying activities beyond the 

requirements in current law; (2) limit or prohibit the authority of city officials to use 
municipal funds to communicate with legislators; and (3) limit or prohibit the authority of 
the Texas Municipal League to use any revenue, however derived, to communicate with 
legislators. 

 
9. support additional appropriations for the Texas Veterans Commission and the Texas 

Workforce Commission skills for veterans initiative that dedicates state funding to address 
the training needs of veterans returning home and entering the Texas workforce. 

7



 
10. support legislation that: (1) clarifies federal congressional intent of federal transit law to 

protect cities across the United States from being penalized due a to a population drop 
suffered as a direct result of a natural disaster, retroactive to 2000; (2) explicitly states that 
only presidentially declared major disasters are covered, in accordance with the Robert T. 
Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (P.L. 100-707); and (3) protects 
federal transit funding streams for urbanized areas until the execution of the next decennial 
census.  

 
11. support legislation that would request that the legislature increase funding for the Texas 

Intrastate Fire Mutual Aid System to $3 million annually. 
 

12. support legislation that would allow cities the option of using either an official newspaper or 
a website for the publication of legal notices. 

 
13. support legislation that would allow a city to lower the prima facie speed limit from 30 to 25 

miles per hour without the need for a traffic study. 
 
Other 
 
The Summit delegates directed League staff to seek the guidance of the TML executive committee 
in relation to tax abatement agreements should the “support” position included elsewhere in this 
program no longer encompass evolving scenarios.  
 
The Summit delegates directed League staff to seek the guidance of the TML board of directors on 
issues related to sales taxes on remote sales.  
 
The Summit delegates requested that, after the 2019 legislative session, the TML President appoint 
a committee to study seeking additional local option transportation funding mechanisms. 
 
The Summit delegates requested that the TML President appoint a committee to study and make 
recommendations to the TML board of directors on issues related to initiative and referendum.  
 
The Summit delegates concurred with the legislative program of the Texas Recreation and Park 
Society, but disapproved the provision in that program relating to prohibiting firearms at certain 
types of city events. 
 
The Summit delegates directed League staff to work with the City of Leary on legislation that 
would reduce cost drivers for small city audits, so long as appropriate statutory safeguards remain in 
place. 

8

http://traps.org/legislative-efforts/


Lloyd
A Gosselink

816Coagres5Avenue, Suite 1900
Austin. Texas 78701

512.322.5800 p
512.472.0532 f

A T T o K N 1-: Y s AT I. A w Ifilawfirm.com

MEMORANDUM

TO: Steering Committee of Cities Served by Oncor
Atmos Cities Steering Committee
Texas Coalition for Affordable Power

FROM: Thomas Brocato

DATE: August 23, 2018
RE: Legislative Update

Background

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide an update on the interim legislative
activities on behalf of the Steering Committee of Cities Served by Oncor ("OCSC"), the Steering
Committee of Cities Served by Atmos ("ACSC") and the Texas Coalition for Affordable Power
("TCAP").

House Speaker Race

On August 20, State Representative Travis Clardy (R-Nacogdoches) announced that he is
entering the Speakers race. Clardy becomes the fifth candidate to succeed Joe Straus. Straus
announced on October 23 he will not seek re-election in 2018. He has served as Speaker since
first elected in 2009. Clardy becomes the fourth Republican to enter the race. The other
candidates are John Zerwas of Richmond, Phil King of Weatherford and Tan Parker of Flower
Mound. In addition. Democrat Eric Johnson of Dallas has announced that he will run for the
position.

Last year, Texas House Republicans voted to pre-select their House speaker candidate for
the 2019 legislative session. The Texas Constitution requires the 150 members of the House to
select a speaker in a vote to be held on the first day of each legislative session. Under the new
procedure. Republican members will meet in December 2018 to vote, via secret ballot, on a
speaker candidate to present to the entire House. The winner must have support of two-thirds of
those voting. Once selected, the bylaw calls for all Republican House members to support the
winning candidate when the full House elects a speaker. Currently, there are 95 Republican
House members and 55 Democrats.

GRIP Interim Charge

As reported previously, the House Energy Resources Committee held a heai-ing on April
18 on its interim charge to study the Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program ("GRIP") and its
effect on gas utility ratemaking and ratepayers. As you may be aware, GRIP has been a
longstanding concem to cities. Cities were instrumental in getting the issue added to the interim
charges.

Cities would like to see the Legislature make the following four changes to GRIP: (1) if

Lloyd Gosseltnk Rochelle & Townsend, PC

9



August 23,2018
Page 2

an utility is overeaming, it should not be allowed to increase its rates; (2) GRIP filings should
account for load growth; (3) the definition of "invested capital" should be narrowed; and (4) the
number of filings should be reduced fi-om six to three before the utility must file a
comprehensive rate case. Later this summer, the Committee will prepare a summary of the
hearing including recommendations. Once we receive report, we will provide you with an
update.

Looking Ahead

Early indications are that the legislative session will be a busy one with respect to utility
issues. Specifically, we anticipate bills related to electricity pricing, the ERCOT market, grid
hardening, cyber security, energy storage, GRIP, gas utility earnings monitoring and other issues.
As we prepare to address these issues, we will work over the next few months to finalize our
legislative agenda for the upcoming session.

7718248

Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, PC10



   
    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    3.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 09/06/2018  
Title: Annual Budget Workshop
Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director 
Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director
City Manager Review: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Receive a report, hold a discussion, and provide staff direction on the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Annual Program of
Services and Capital Improvement Program.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The City Charter, Section 9.02, requires that the City Manager be responsible for submitting an annual budget not
later than sixty (60) days prior to the first day of the new fiscal year.  In compliance with the Charter requirement,
the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 budget was submitted to the Council by July 31, 2018 and can also be found on the
City's website.   This budget workshop is one of several for Council to deliberate on the Fiscal 2018-2019 annual
budget and to provide staff direction.

The City's budget development procedures are in conformance with State Law outlined in the Truth in Taxation
process.  The complete budget timeline is provided below.

  
Meeting Date Budget Agenda Item
July 31 Publication of the Proposed Annual Program of Services (Budget)
August 2 Council Workshop -  Budget Overview
August 9
 

Council Workshop- Discuss Governmental Funds 
Council vote on Published tax rate and to set the public hearing dates

August 16 Council Workshop- Discuss Proprietary Funds
August 21

 

Council Workshop on the Budget
Approve Crime Control & Prevention District Budget
First Public Hearing on the Tax Rate

September 6

 

Council Workshop on the Budget
Second Public Hearing on the Tax Rate
Public Hearing on the Annual Budget

September 20
 

Adoption of the Annual Program of Services (Budget)
Adoption of the Tax Rates and Tax Rolls

RECOMMENDATION

11



   
    PRESENTATION ITEM           

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 09/06/2018  
Title: Receive a Presentation on the STAR Communities Certification.
Submitted For: Helen-Eve Liebman, Director 
Submitted By: Patrick Hubbard, Development Coordinator
City Manager Review: 

AGENDA ITEM
Receive a Presentation on the STAR Communities Certification.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Effective August 27, 2018 the City of Corinth is formally certified in the STAR Community Rating System, having
achieved a 3-STAR Community Rating®.  Obtaining a 3-STAR Community certification designates Corinth as a
community recognized for sustainability leadership. The STAR Community Rating System (STAR) is the nation’s
leading framework and certification program for local sustainability. Corinth was accepted in the Fall 2017
Leadership STAR Communities Program. This program is designed to help communities to baseline their current
sustainability status by achieving STAR certification. Currently, only 5 other Texas cities (Austin, Denton,
Houston, Plano and San Antonio) have obtained STAR Certification. This makes Corinth the smallest community
in Texas to have obtained this certification.

STAR certification provides a clear, data-driven approach to assessing communities’ sustainability efforts.
Certification allows communities to credibly and transparently track progress toward overall sustainability
objectives. The STAR Community Rating System encompasses economic, environmental and social performance
measures for both local governments and the broader community. The rating system includes 7 goal areas and 45
sustainability objectives, with over 500 different measurable indicators, including both quantitative and qualitative
measures.

The STAR Community Rating System supports three leadership certifications: 3-STAR Community, 4-STAR
Community and 5-STAR Community. Hundreds of cities, towns, and counties are actively using the STAR
Community Rating System to set goals, measure progress, and improve their communities. At the time of writing,
STAR Communities lists 73 other certified communities nationwide, with only 4 cities (Baltimore, MD; Cambridge,
MA; Northhampton, MA; Seattle WA) achieving a 5-STAR Community Rating.

The STAR Community Rating System was initiated and supported by founding partners ICLEI-Local Governments
for Sustainability USA, the U.S. Green Building Council, National League of Cities and the Center for American
Progress. A STAR Community Rating lasts for four years after the award date, at which point the community is
expected to measure and report progress through recertification.

 

RECOMMENDATION
N/A

12



   
    PRESENTATION ITEM           

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 09/06/2018  
Title: Receive a presentation and hold a discussion on the SolSmart Designation
Submitted For: Helen-Eve Liebman, Director 
Submitted By: Patrick Hubbard, Development Coordinator
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Receive a Presentation on the SolSmart Designation.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The City of Corinth received a Gold designation from the national SolSmart program for making it faster, easier,
and more affordable for homes and businesses to go solar. This designation recognizes Corinth for taking bold steps
to encourage solar energy growth and remove obstacles to solar development. For companies looking to expand, a
SolSmart Gold designation is a signal that Corinth is “open for solar business.”

SolSmart is led by The Solar Foundation and the International City/County Management Association (ICMA) and
funded by the U.S. Department of Energy Solar Energy Technologies Office. More than 180 cities, counties, and
small towns have achieved SolSmart designation since the program launched in 2016. The Planning &
Development Department submitted an application to become a SolSmart designated city in March 2018.  SolSmart
uses objective criteria to award communities points based on the actions they take to reduce barriers to solar energy
development. Communities that take sufficient action are designated either gold, silver, or bronze.

As a SolSmart designee, Corinth is helping solar companies greatly reduce the cost of installations and pass those
savings on to consumers. This allows even more local homes and businesses to obtain affordable, clean, and
reliable electricity through solar. The actions Corinth has taken will help encourage solar companies to do business
in the area, driving economic development and creating local jobs.

To receive designation, cities and counties make changes to their local processes to reduce the time and money it
takes to install a solar energy system. This includes evaluating local permitting processes, as well as planning and
zoning procedures. SolSmart designees also develop innovations in areas such as market development and finance.
The City is currently implementing improvements to local processes including solar applications as well as
integrating the SolSmart designation goals within the permit process. In connection with this application, the City
Council approved an update to the Unified Development Code to permit the installation of attached and detached
photovoltaic systems in all districts in the city and to provide zoning standards for the installation of detached
photovoltaic arrays.

As part of the SolSmart program, a team of national experts provides no-cost technical assistance to help
communities achieve designation. All cities and counties are eligible to join the SolSmart program and receive this
technical assistance. Interested communities can learn more at SolSmart.org.
 

RECOMMENDATION
N/A

13



   
    CONSENT ITEM    1.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 09/06/2018  
Title: August 2, 2018 Workshop 
Submitted For: Kim Pence, City Secretary  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the August 2, 2018 Workshop Session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are minutes from the August 2, 2018 Workshop Session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the August 2, 2018 Workshop Session minutes.

Attachments
Minutes 

14



STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 
 
On this the 2nd day of August 2018 the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in a Workshop Session at the 
Corinth City Hall at 5:30 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, time, place and 
purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, Government Code, with the 
following members to wit: 
 
Members Present: 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Don Glockel, Council Member, Arrived at 6:05 p.m. 
 
Members Absent: 
None  

 
Staff Members Present: 

Bob Hart, City Manager 
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
Cody Collier, Director of Public Works, Park Maintenance, Recreation, and Utility Operations 
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Manager 
Helen-Eve Liebman, Planning and Development Director 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Curtis Birt, Lake Cities Fire Chief 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director of Finance & Administrative Services 
Chris Rodriquez, Assistant Finance Director 
Jamaine Walker, Controller  
Guadalupe Ruiz, Director of Human Resources 
Alan Upchurch, City Engineer 
Jimmy Gregg, Police Lieutenant 
Kevin Tyson, Police Lieutenant 
Melissa Cranford, Messer, Rockefeller, & Fort 
 
WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 

1.  Discuss Regular Meeting Items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed session 
 items as set forth in the Closed Session agenda items below. 
 
No discussion on Regular Session Agenda items.  
 
2.  Receive a report, hold a discussion and give staff direction on the Capital Improvement Projects. 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - presented the proposed Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  
 
• To be included in the Capital Improvement Program, the project should cost more than $50,000 and must 
 have an expected useful life greater than the life-span of any debt used to fund the projects. 
 

15



• Projects include construction and major renovations of buildings; acquisition of property; improvements to 
 roadways and sidewalks; and the efficient operation of the water, wastewater, and drainage systems. 
 
• Other costs associated with the capital budget can include, but are not limited to, architectural and 
 engineering fees and site development. 
 
When staff and I discussed the CIP we talked about a priority of 1-4. I had spoken to some of the Council on this 
and you can make adjustments. 
  
Priority I:  IMPERATIVE (Must-Do) –Projects that cannot reasonably be postponed in order to avoid harmful or 
otherwise undesirable consequences. 
A. Corrects a condition dangerous to public health or safety 
B. Satisfies a legal obligation 
C. Alleviates an emergency service disruption or deficiency 
D. Prevents irreparable damage to a valuable public facility. 
 
Priority II:  ESSENTIAL (Should-Do) –Projects that address clearly demonstrated needs or objectives. 
A. Rehabilitates or replaces an obsolete public facility 
B. Stimulates economic growth or private capital investment 
C. Reduces future operating and maintenance costs 
D. Leverages available local, state, or federal funding 
 
Priority III:  IMPORTANT (Could-Do) –Projects that benefit the community but may be delayed without 
detrimental effects to basic services. 
A. Provides a new or expanded level of service 
B. Promotes intergovernmental cooperation 
C. Reduces energy consumption 
D. Enhances cultural or natural resources. 
 
Priority IV:  DESIRABLE – Desirable projects that are not included within five-year program because of funding 
limitations. 
 
CIP Summary: 
 

16



 
 
CIP - STREETS 
 

 
 

17



 
 
Mayor Heidemann - this dollar amount will be financed through debt? 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - yes. It will be financed through the general fund or the tax rate portion and the 
waterlines and the elevated storage tank will be financed through the utility fund.  
 

18



 
 
 

 
 
 

19



 
 

 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager - you will see this on the street portion, the water and wastewater side. Parkridge will be 
designed to be a collector street that will run from Lake Sharon over to Church.  
 

20



Typically you would have a developer go in and do that when they develop the property. The issue is you have all 
the multiple landowners through here so the ability for someone to go in and tackle that is almost impossible. What 
you probably want to think about is putting this in the CIP at some stage. You would want to figure out a way to 
use some city funds, some developer funds and on the city part, you go back and recover your costs through impact 
fees or you look at a street assessment program or you do something with a development agreement to get paid 
back in the future.  You may want to start thinking about some kind of an agreement to make this happen at some 
point in the future. I think it will be incredible difficult and expensive for someone to assemble all that land.  
 

 

21



 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager - of all the streets that need to be a high priority this should be one of them. The problem 
with this is part of the street is in Shady Shores, part of it is in the City of Denton and part of it is in Denton County 
and some here in Corinth. 
 
We have been having discussions with the other 3 Lake Cities about trying to do a Joint Council meeting on October 
22, 2018. The primary topic we would like to have on the agenda is transportation. I think that is where this 
conversation can begin.  
 

22



 
 

 

 
 

Councilmember Johnson - is that projected cost also include the funds that were escrowed from the apartment 
complex several years? 

23



Alan Upchurch,  Temp City Engineer - that would be the project cost. If there is funds available it would reduce 
that amount as far as the City's participation. 

 
Parks and Recreaton: 
 

 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager - we don't have anything proposed in the current fiscal year and they really bounce out in 
the future years.  
 

24



 
 

 
 

25



 
 

 
 

26



 
 

 
 

27



 
 

 
 

28



 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager - this is being triggered by the dispatch center and will allow the dispatch all 3 fire 
stations simultaneously.  
 

 

29



 

 
 

 
 

30



 
 

 

 
 
Councilmember Garber - were these not things that we looked at during construction? Like the covered parking 

31



and epoxy floors? 
 

Curtis Birt, Lake Cities Fire Chief - they were all put in we just didn't have the money. They were on our wish 
list and were just below the line of what we could afford. We were hoping to do this through savings or things that 
we cut during construction but it didn't happen.  
 
CIP - Utility Fund 

 

 
 

32



 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager - this is getting the waterlines in that area and getting it to the water tank. This is going 
to have to be debt financed also. We have some impact fees we can put on this. Part of that is I am suggesting is 
part of that $10 million dollar issue for this year and some more next year.  
 
We did the rate adjustments in Feb/March of last year and we have not been through a full summer cycle yet. Right 
now, our revenues are trending such that I think it is going to take a very minimal rate adjustment to cover. We are 
in the 2nd month of collection and you really want to get through a full cycle so you can figure out how the rates are 
doing and not doing. We would like to come back in January and look at all the rates and issue the debt in March.  
 
On July 23, 2018, Upper Trinity set an all-time peak at 60.2 million gallons of water. On that same day the City of 
Corinth used 6.1 million gallons of water (about 10% of the system).  

33



 
 

 
 

34



 
 

Alan Upchurch, City Engineer - with this project it is improving the efficiency of the pumps.  
 

 
 

35



 
 

 

 
 

CIP - Wastewater 

36



 
 

Nothing in the proposed budget.  

 
 

 
 

 

37



 
 

Alan Upchurch, Temp City Engineer -  discussions began even before I came to the City about what we can do 
from an interim bases and possibly long term basis to provide sewer to this area without the possibility of having to 
install additional lift stations. We are working with the Lake City's Municipal Utility District to see if we can gravity 
flow to their lift stations and eventually move back up to FM 2181. We are supposed to meet with them in the next 
couple of weeks to fine tune what we may be able to do from an engineering standpoint and the cost. Depends on 
how that goes we will come back to Council with some possible agreement of cost-sharing and arrangement on this 
sewer.  We have to resolve the sewer issue before we can develop the property.  
 
Councilmember Glockel - I didn't see anything in the budget through 2023 that resolves the bottle neck at I-35 
where we are getting into someone else's line. I believe it goes into Lantana to have some extra capacity for a period 
of time. When they run out of capacity we have to get out so before Interstate 35 is widened to its full extent, I would 
think that we would be looking at somehow trying to get to the east side of Interstate 35 before that happens. 
Especially if we bring this sewer up and bring it down FM 2181 we will be taking more capacity from Lantana. 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - that is right. We have met with Upper Trinity and they are working on it. 
 
Cody Collier, Public Works Director - this is one of the major items on their list to have all that straighten out so 
that we can tie into it.  
 
Councilmember Glockel - I know you serve on that board but I spoke to Upper Trinity in September of last year 
and they told me that until the Lantana pipe capacity is gone we are more than welcome to use it but when it is gone 
we have to find our own way to get across Interstate 35.  
 
Cody Collier, Public Works Director - the last conversation I had with Larry Patterson is Upper Trinity was 
working on that with TXDOT and they are trying to get everything set before Phase II and they were trying to get 
the rights to go in there and repair all of that and how they were going to divide it out. They presented a plan to the 

38



board and they were working on a solution for that exact issue.  
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - we would look to Upper Trinity to take care of the line that goes underneath but we will 
end up paying for it but Upper Trinity will be in the front agency on that in dealing with TXDOT and all the issues 
that go on. When that happens we will have one of two options. One, Upper Trinity can design it and build it and we 
just pay for it directly or two, they will design it, build it and we will pay them back through our rates over a 20 year 
period.  
 
 

 
 

 

39



 
 

 
 

 

40



 
 

 

41



 
 

 
 
CIP - Storm Drainage Fund: 

 

42



 
 

 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager - Carter Jones is doing the plan for us and they should have that ready in the next 60 
days. The state grant cycles start in November and we are recommending and we put together in the budget is that 
we want to be in that first cycle of funding. At the time we do the application and contract we have to certify that 
we got the local funds.  

43



We are assuming we can do a $5 million dollar project and $4 million out of grant funds and $1 million out of local 
funds. That is how we have assembled this. This is when the FEMA maps are going to come out with all the 
changes in the floodplain. 
 
 

 
 

Alan Upchurch, Temp City Engineer - There is a lot of drainage on that project. This funding is already included 
in the contract you have awarded. 
 

44



 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager - that was the summary of the CIP.  
 
Mayor Heidemann recessed the Workshop at 6:38 p.m.* See Closed Session 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

The City Council will convene in such executive or closed session to consider any matters regarding any of the above 
agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated litigation; 
and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body under the Texas 
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts with chapter 551. 
 
Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open 
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third person. 
 
Council met in Closed Session from 6:38 p.m. until 7:00 p.m.  

 
a. Consider acquisition of Right-of-way at 1708 Post Oak Drive. 

 

b. Consider acquisition of Right-of way at 2101 Lake Sharon Blvd. 

 
Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of 
a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee. 
 
Council met in Closed Session from 6:38 p.m. until 7:00 p.m.  

 

45



a. Marcus Mote v. Debra Walthall, Case No. 4:16-cv-00203-RC, United States District Court for the Eastern 

District of Texas. 

 
Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental 
body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or near 
the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic development 
negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect. 
 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City 
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney on any 
agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 
 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION 

ITEMS. 

 

There was no action taken from Closed Session.  

 

Mayor Heidemann adjourned the Workshop at 6:59 p.m. (Council met in Regular Session).  
 
Mayor Heidemann opened the Workshop Session at 7:55 p.m. 

 

3.  Receive a report, hold a discussion, and provide staff direction on the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Annual 
 Program of Services and Capital Improvement Program. 
 

 Bob Hart, City Manager - presented an overview of the budget.  
 

 
 

46



 
 

 
 

47



 
 

 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager - the general recommendation is you should be updating your Comprehensive Land Use 
Plan about every 5 years. We started ours 10 years ago and adopted it 9 years ago. We are at the point where we are 
due for doing that now and that is part of the recommendation. 

48



The Geos Institute is a group of technical assistance in terms of hazard mitigation, flooding and other types of 
hazard mitigation. We were a Beta South Community during this Fiscal Year with them on developing some of 
their public documents and based on that we can roll over into getting services from them at a much discounted 
approach. This will help with both the planning function and also Emergency Management function. 
 
Participating with Council of Governments in the Regional Public Works Program. The Council of Governments 
has for years got cities to work together to develop standards for contracts, specifications on how drainage is done, 
storm water management and how water lines and sewer lines are done and they create documents and policies to 
do that. We are wanting Corinth to participate in that.  
 
The drainage with Lynchburg Creek Watershed.  We talked about that under the CIP and having the match money 
in there and also going after some of the grants to do those. We are in a position to submit in November/December 
time-frame. That is when we will be making those judgement calls on which grant program to go with.  
 
The demolition of the police building on Corinth Parkway will be used temporarily for public works while that is 
being remodeled. Following that we are recommending is we tear down the building and it will end up being part of 
an incentive of how that land area will be developed along Interstate 35. The reason for tearing it down is because it 
is in a flood plain and partially in the flood way. Under our contract with FEMA to be able to offer flood insurance, 
we agreed not to have buildings and release Certificates of Occupancy and permits in the flood plain and flood way.   
 
We have in the budget to put in a security camera system for the building internal and external. We have had one 
here but it has not been working for about 3 years and this would give us some security of the building. 
 
In the neighborhood parks we would like to put in a rubber mulch that would go in under all the playground equipment 
and that would be partially funded through the parks funding and the Economic Development Corporation. 
 
The soccer netting is a safety issue by Lynchburg Creek. The soccer balls go over there and there is a lot of snakes 
and so we would like to put up netting over in that area.  
 
Capital Improvement we touched on earlier in the discussions.  
 
Councilmember Glockel - on the Lake Sharon/Oakmont to FM 2499 in the CIP, I have seen the plans where it talks 
about the paving and all of that but is there any water and sewer going to be put in that street? 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - the biggest part of it is crossing over the Upper Trinity line. We would have a water line 
down that south side to feed those tanks.  
 
Councilmember Glockel - are going to have water and sewer so that the land can be developed? If you build Lake 
Sharon from Oakmont all the way to Parkridge, we need to put water and sewer in that street.  
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - Let me get with Alan and bring you back a good answer on that next week.  
 
We are looking at a Tax Increment Financing operation. I think that I would suggest we start to look at how we put 
together something is working close with NCTC and then working with Texas Health Resources (THR) to figure out 
what we can do to get the atrium hospital and get that back in to play. Texas Health Resources are ready for some 
conversations regarding what to do with that building.  
 
If you look at some of the needs that NCTC has on long term plans for this campus dealing with a commuter rail stop 
becomes an issue. DCTA is certainly open to conversations about allowing us to fund part of that transportation fee 
through a TIF/TIRZ so you step around the issue of needing to do that with the sales tax. I call them TIF's but they 
are now called TIRZ Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone and they used to be called Tax Increment Financing Districts. 

49



Looking at the opening of the Fire House #3 and what we would do is pick up 6 fire fighters through the safer grant. 
All the preliminary information that we are receiving states that grant will be approved. We will continue to have the 
conversations with the Lake Cities.  
 
We also have in place some protective gear for the fire fighters. You want to keep those kind of things less than 10 
years of replacing and ours is sitting at about 12 years old. 
 
The police vehicle equipment that goes inside the vehicles are in our budgeting process and not part of the Enterprise 
program we are doing now.  
 
In the Public Works department we are going to bid for the furniture for that facility and that is included in the budget.  
 
The summer camp that we do we have waiting list for that and we would like to double the size of that. Those things 
pay for themselves. 
 
The light tower is the light so when individuals are called out in the middle of the night working they will have some 
good light out there.  
 
We have been having conversation with LCMUA about us doing the GIS system for them and so bringing that in 
house and doing that. They are very interested in doing it. We need a little more help Garrett does a great job and he 
keeps up mainly because he works six days a week about 10 hours a day. We are proposing another analyst and use 
them for the City and through LCMUA. So the staffing increase that we are asking for in this budget are the 6 
firefighters under the Safer Grant so that will be partially funded. One GIS Analyst which will be 50% funded through 
LCMUA and two part time people to work at the summer camp.    
 

 
 

50



 
 

The Council looked at this extensively a few years ago and we have about 15 cities that we use to compare 
ourselves to. Right now in terms of salaries we rank about 14th or 15th out of those cities depending on what 
positions you are looking at. We are recommending in this budget to maintain the 3% merit but then on top of that 
doing a 5% cost of living adjustment. We would take everybody and the pay plan and move it 5%.  

 

51



 

 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager - This budget has been put together with the recommendation of $.53000 for the tax rate. 
The four big areas that will cover is the drainage, opening fire station #3, Comp Plan update, and the Lake 
Sharon/Dobbs alignment and the elevated storage tank. 
 
Councilmember Burke - what is the difference between the rollback and the proposed tax rate? 
 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director of Finance and Administrative Services - the difference between the rollback 
and the proposed is $286,000.  
 
 Councilmember Burke - what is our overall debt capacity? How much debt can we issue and I am not suggesting 
we issue any without raising taxes? 
 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director of Finance and Administrative Services - today we have zero without raising 
taxes because our debt rate actually lowered this year. We went from 10895 to 10289 and by state statute you cannot 
collect a debt rate if you haven't issued the debt for it. We had to lower that debt rate down so today we have none. 
Next year if we have some bonds that are maturing and making some payments we may have a little bit throughout 
the year. I think in 2021 we will have a big jump of debt capacity. 
 
Mayor Heidemann - are we going to have the capacity to issue debt in the spring of next year? 
 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director of Finance and Administrative Services - yes, you can raise your tax rate as 
much as you want there is no limit as to how much debt you can issue you just have to be able to pay for it.  For every 
cent on the tax rate on the debt side you can issue about $3 million dollars of debt. 
 
Councilmember Burke - realistically from where we are, we have about $15 million dollars capacity. 
 

52



Bob Hart, City Manager - based on the current level of valuation. You get more value and you get more capacity.  
 

 
 

 
 

53



 
 

 
 

54



 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager - your policy target for fund balance are all here in all three of these key funds and that is 
crucial because if we look at a March Bond Sale these numbers become critical.  

 
 

55



 
 
 
ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 8:50 P.M. 

 
AYES: All 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of    , 2018.  
 
 
       
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

56



   
    CONSENT ITEM    2.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 09/06/2018  
Title: August 2, 2018 Regular Session
Submitted For: Kim Pence, City Secretary  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the August 2, 2018 Regular Session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the August 2, 2018 Regular Session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the August 2, 2018 Regular Session minutes.

Attachments
Minutes 

57



STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 
 
On this the 2nd day of August 2018 the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in Regular Session 
at the Corinth City Hall at 7:00 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, 
time, place and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, 
Government Code, with the following members to wit: 
 
Members Present: 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member  
Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Don Glockel, Council Member 
 
Members Absent: 
None 
 
Staff Members Present: 

Bob Hart, City Manager 
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
Cody Collier, Director of Public Works, Park Maintenance, Recreation, and Utility Operations 
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Manager 
Helen-Eve Liebman, Planning and Development Director 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Curtis Birt, Lake Cities Fire Chief 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director of Finance & Administrative Services 
Chris Rodriquez, Assistant Finance Director 
Jamaine Walker, Controller  
Guadalupe Ruiz, Director of Human Resources 
Alan Upchurch, City Engineer 
Jimmy Gregg, Police Lieutenant 
Kevin Tyson, Police Lieutenant 
Melissa Cranford, Messer, Rockefeller, & Fort 
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE: 

"Honor the Texas Flag: I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible". 
 
Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., Councilmember Garber delivered the 

invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance and Texas Pledge. 

 
CITIZENS COMMENTS 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than 
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will 
be limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council 
and may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input 
form if you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be 
addressed to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of 
Ordinance of the City of Corinth. 

58



 
No citizen comments were made. 

 
BUSINESS:  

 

1.  Consider and act on an amendment to the Corinth Economic Development Corporation Bylaws. 
 
 Bob Hart, City Manager - the Economic Development Board reviewed the bylaws and  voted 4-
 2 to recommend changes. The City Attorney attended the Economic Development meeting and 
 prepared the language based on the discussions of that meeting and is also here tonight to answer 
 any questions.  
 
 Councilmember Glockel - most of us on City Council has served on the Economic 
 Development Board and we know how it works. The thrust of this whole thing as I recollect 
 is that we feel as a Council that we were not given the information that we wanted from EDC. It 
 was the Council's fault that the information did not flow. Had we asked the Economic Development 
 Board to provide that information that could have been given to the Council and not violated the 
 law but we chose to put it under the City Manager so that he could get the information to us.  
 
 I think it boils down to that was not the problem at all. The problem was that we have EDC 
 sitting out here as an arm by itself and the city would not support EDC unless EDC was part of the 
 click so that is what the real thrust of this is, is trying to get EDC under the control of the City 
 Manager and not to say that is good or bad or indifferent it could work either way but it is not 
 information that is stopping us and making this move because we are getting the information out 
 and all we have to do is ask the EDC to give us the information.  
 
 If you want it weekly we could get it so for us to hide behind the fact that we are moving  it under 
 the City Manager so that we could have better information flow I believe is not correct. The sad 
 part about it, the way we operate today EDC really has no assistance from the city and 
 sometimes the information from the Planning and Zoning and so on doesn't flow. So the only way 
 we can get it to flow is put everything under Bob Hart's name then maybe that is what we have to 
 do but that is why I wanted to bring it to Council and let Council decide and if that is what the 
 Council wants to do then so be it. But we hired a man under a contract and told him how he would 
 be working and he took  us at face value and the last time we talked and decided to massage his job 
 career and the way he reports and the things he could do and we never asked him his opinion and I 
 felt like we really left him out in the cold.  
 
 Now, I don't expect Bob Hart to fire him tomorrow but my point is he was hired under an 
 agreement with the EDC as a board and we are failing out on him under this "we need more 
 information excuse" and I think that is just an excuse.  
 
 Councilmember Burke - I support the change to the bylaws and I think it will help with 
 information flow and I also think we have a director levels position that needs daily 
 management and we have a bylaw situation that will make that clear. That is my reasoning 
 and basis. I am certainly not trying to hide behind anything else.  
 
 Councilmember Garber - In my opinion I do share the same feelings that Councilman Burke 
 does. We talked a lot about information flow and in my opinion that is a challenge but that is just 
 a symptom of something that could be a larger problem. Certainly not hiding behind the information 
 flow I think that there are other things that could be fixed and addressed and so the information 
 flow would be a very small piece of that in my opinion.   

59



 MOTION made by Councilmember Burke to approve the amendment to the Corinth 
 Economic Development Bylaws as presented. Seconded by Councilmember Garber.  
 
 Councilmember Johnson - back in 1998/99 the citizens, the voters of the City of Corinth 
 decided that they needed an Economic Development Corporation. They wanted a group a 
 corporation that was outside of the City Hall that was funded by sales tax as allowed by  law that 
 they could choose a director for and this group (City Council) would aid the Economic 
 Development of the City and take some of the load off the city staff.  That passed and the Economic 
 Development Corporation was created. The history that goes with that was the first director had 
 some problems with some spending issues and the City Council changed the bylaws to give the 
 board more control over how the director was hired, who managed him or her and went forward 
 from there.  
 
 The Board has acted over the years not only as in an advisory situation but they are also a 
 corporation that was established by the voters of the City of Corinth. Their management and 
 their decision making processes are all established by a vote of the public not an  administrative 
 action brought forth by this Council.  
 
 I think in doing what we are talking about doing, we circuit that vote and my suggestion  would 
 be we have all talked about how we are going to fund the fire department down the road. If this is 
 how we are going to handle the EDC instead of playing this little administrative game let's just 
 come back and remove the EDC by vote and push those funds, by law which we can do now,  on 
 the same election over to the Fire Department whenever that election can occur. I think this is a 
 real sham to try and gain control of the EDC through administrative and remove the public from 
 the situation that they wanted to create and develop and foster. 
 
 Councilmember Burke - the board serves at the pleasure of the Council. They are all appointed 
 by the Council and so to say that because we are going to put the director who doesn't vote on the 
 actions of the EDC under the day to day management of the City Manager somehow changes the 
 function of the EDC, I think that is a sham Lowell and I think it is kind of a scare tactic and I think 
 if you understand, as you do, how the EDC functions and how it is managed, with that argument 
 you are just trying to scare people. Nothing about this is going to undermined day to day function 
 of the EDC. It will function the same way it has, the same way it has for years with you on it.  
 Because we are putting a director level position under the day to day management of a City 
 Manager who we hire and fire, I don't see how that can act as a detriment to the function of that 
 body or this Council or this City. 
 
 Essentially the situation is now we either don't know who manages that person or that person is 
 managed by a volunteer board who meets once a month and that is probably not the best idea and 
 that is the reason we need to change the bylaws so that the person who is in charge of the City has 
 managerial authority over all the directors who affect the control of funds that develop this City 
 and its projects and move us forward. We need one person who is ultimately responsible for the 
 management of all its directors. 
 
 Councilmember Johnson - I think the job description that the Economic Development 
 Corporation Director has that says that he is under the day to day management of the City Manager 
 if I remember correctly so that is already done. It has worked for years and years, with previous 
 managers and previous Economic Development Directors. It all worked before and it all worked 
 under that same day to day operational management and we didn't have any problems. It seemed 
 the problems occurred at this point and more recent past and that is where I am concerned about 
 how this has come about and the discussion level ability between two bright individuals who may 

60



 not see eye to eye about the same policy and they choose not to discuss the policies between the 
 two of them for whatever reasons so I still see this as more of a communication issue than the need 
 to change the bylaws that are already operating in the manner that we are going to make this change. 
 The big thing that we change is it gives the City Manager pretty much the sole authority to remove 
 the Economic Development Director and that concerns me when he works for a board that was 
 established by a vote.   
 
 AYES:  Burke, Garber, Henderson  
 NOES:  Johnson, Glockel 
 ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

2.  Consider and act on an Ordinance of the City of Corinth repealing existing Chapter 39, Code of 
 Ethics, of Title III, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City and adopting a new 
 Chapter 39, Code of Ethics, with provisions applicable to City Officials, both current and former, 
 Vendors and Complainants; providing External Remedies for Frivolous Complaints; and providing 
 an effective date. 
 
 Bob Hart, City Manager - the Ethics Commission Board has had several meetings since 
 January along with UTA graduate Capstone students to assist in updating the existing Code 
 of Ethics Ordinance. They have worked with the board for several months and the board was able 
 to prepare a draft ordinance for your consideration. The City Attorney has made a number of 
 revisions to the ordinance and this is being brought to you for your consideration tonight. This is 
 purely a policy position on the part of the City Council how you want to govern yourselves and 
 how you want to govern advisory boards in your role. 
 
 Mayor Heidemann - as I reviewed this contract with Red Flag it says the annual fee for 
 residents is $600 and includes 12 reports annually and $35.00 each thereafter. Can you tell 
 me what a residential report is? 
 
 Bob Hart, City Manager - as I understand it, if it is any number of calls they would not  charge 
 for that if they have to generate a report where there is a lot of background and documentation that 
 is when the report would be gathered. Before we bring this to you for your consideration I will 
 verify with them first.  
 
 Councilmember Glockel - in some areas of the proposed Ordinance it talks about family 
 of the 1st degree and in the same ordinance in another area it says something about family 
 of the 2nd degree. Is this written as so we are talking about 1st degree or 2nd degree 
 relationships to family because it goes back and forth? 
 

Melissa Cranford, City Attorney - Mack, the previous attorney looked at this and my educated 
guess was that he was trying to stay consistent with the state statute relative to these specific 
functions.  
 
Councilmember Glockel - when we talk about the qualifications for a complaint to be processed 
and how that complaint flows through the City Secretary and then to the Ethics Board. If I make a 
complaint and I file it with the City Secretary and if it is not filled out completely it gets sent back 
from the City Secretary to me and it gives me a few days to refile my complaint. It states "The 
complainant shall have 10 business days after the date the City Secretary sends a deficiency notice 
to the complainant to provide the required information to the City Secretary, or the complainant is 

61



automatically deemed abandoned and may not be processed in accordance with this Chapter. 
Within 5 days of the complainant being abandoned, the City Secretary shall send written 
notification to the complainant and the accused." We just abandoned the complaint because it was 
not complete but we send it to the accused? If we are going to abandon this complaint meaning we 
are not going to do anything with it why would we then turn around and send a copy of it back to 
the complainant saying we are not going to deal with you because you didn't fill it out right and 
then send a copy to whoever it is they are accusing? 
 
Melissa Cranford, City Attorney - I believe the intent of this section is to provide sufficiency 
process to the complainant that his complaint was not appropriately amended and will not be 
pursued because of the requirements of the ordinance. Is your question why is it being sent to the 
accused or why are we sending it back to the complainant? 
 
Councilmember Glockel - I think I understand completely that the accuser has not completed the 
form correctly he or she was given a second chance to do it and if they didn't complete it within 5 
business days the complaint will be considered abandoned if the accuser does not fill it out 
correctly. So the City Secretary has the power to consider abandoned and then will send a written 
notice back to me making the complaint. You really don't know what I am complaining about but 
you are going to send it to the accused and to me that makes no sense.  
 
Melissa Cranford, City Attorney - I think the intent there is to disclose that loop so that all parties 
are apprised that there is not an active complaint that the process has been abandoned or completed 
so that you don't have a question that someone filed a complaint and it was never investigated you 
have some documentation to establish that it was abandoned.  
 
Councilmember Glockel - I totally agree on abandoning the complaint if it is not filled out 
correctly. I disagree with them sending it to somebody that I am complaining about. I never even 
completed the complaint so why process it. If it is not done correctly the complaint will be 
abandoned and that is where it should stop in my opinion. Don't send it to somebody else half way 
through the process because you don't know why you are sending it, you only have half the 
information that is why the complaint was abandoned. You don't want to send it to the accused if 
it is not complete. If there is an issue send it to the Ethics Committee and let them process it that 
forms with this chapter and then the accused will be notified on a legitimate reason.  
 
Melissa Cranford, City Attorney - the ordinance should reflect the policy direction of the Council 
and so if that is a change that we need to make I would be happy to do that with the Council' s 
direction. 
 
Councilmember Burke - are you concerned that the accused would use that information on the 
person who made the complaint and yet the complaint does not get addressed? 
 
Councilmember Glockel - a little bit of all that. If you have somebody who is making a complaint 
and it is half prepared and you by policy you abandon it, to me that says we are done with it and I 
am going to send you a letter back who put the complaint in that we are not dealing with the 
complaint because there is not enough information and that is where it should stop in my opinion.  
 
Melissa Cranford, City Attorney - I believe again it is for transparency with regards to the process 
and the accused would know the status of the complaint.  
 
Councilmember Glockel - if you go down to confidentiality which is another paragraph down in 
the ordinance it talks about a complaint that has been submitted to the City is hereby deemed 

62



confidential until such time as the complaint is either dismissed or placed on the agenda for 
consideration of the Ethics Board. If the same complaint is not filled out correctly then it is no 
longer confidential and I don't understand that.  
 
Melissa Cranford - City Attorney - if you look on paragraph J the confidentiality under this 
ordinance is only to the extent allowed by the Texas Public Information Act and so in the event that 
someone request a copy of an alleged complaint even prior to processing the City might be required 
to disclose that complaint under this ordinance it would be deemed confidential and so going back 
to your question relative to the accused of being notified of the complaint has been abandoned is 
purely a policy decision for the Council to make but I believe the intent of that language was to 
ensure transparency of due process of the application itself.  
 
Councilmember Glockel - I think if the complaint is not filled out correctly and we are going to 
abandon it, it ought to be abandoned and not processed to anybody and cause hard feelings because 
if it is not filled out completely it is probably not true anyway so why should we cause all the issues 
that it may cause.  
 
Mayor Heidemann - it states in here the City Secretary is going to have annual training as it relates 
to different things that are going on? 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - yes, right now the City Secretary has training on the Open Records 
Law and the Open Meetings Law and what we would do is training with all of the boards we would 
review this Ordinance and online training through TML or the Attorney General's Office and that 
would fall under the City Secretary to provide that training.  
  

 MOTION made by Councilmember Burke to approve the Ordinance with the exception  of 
 Section 39.13, Subsection H (2) to be modified to strike out the last three words "and the accused". 
 Seconded by Councilmember Henderson. 
 
 AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Henderson, Glockel 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

The purpose of this section is to allow each councilmember the opportunity to provide general updates 
and/or comments to fellow councilmembers, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, 
in accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Councilmember may direct 
that an item be added as a business item to any future agenda. 
 
Councilmember Glockel - I would like to see the information that we requested back in May from Mr. 
Hart on his performance review.  
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - We notified you that Chief Walthall plans to retire on August 24th. Our 
Controller, Jamaine Walker will be accepting a job in Dallas County. We will have a City Engineer and a 
Planning Manager that will be starting on August 13th. We will have a Code Enforcement Officer beginning 
on Monday, August 6th so we are getting the Planning and Development staff back together.   
 

There was no Closed Session during the Regular meeting.  

 

63



CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any 
of the above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas 
Government Code. 
 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated 
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts 
with chapter 551. 
 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an 
open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations 
with a third person. 
 
a. Consider acquisition of Right-of-way at 1708 Post Oak Drive. 

 

b. Consider acquisition of Right-of way at 2101 Lake Sharon Blvd. 

 
Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, 
or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee. 
 
a. Marcus Mote v. Debra Walthall, Case  No. 4:16-cv-00203-RC, United States District Court for the 

Eastern District of Texas. 

 
Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, 
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is 
conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive 
to a business prospect. 
 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City  
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its 
Attorney on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 
 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION 
ITEMS. 
 
ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 7:45 P.M. 
 
AYES: All 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of    , 2018.  
 
 
       
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

64



   
    CONSENT ITEM    3.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 09/06/2018  
Title: August 9, 2018 Workshop Session
Submitted For: Kim Pence, City Secretary  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the August 9, 2018 Workshop Session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are minutes from the August 9, 2018 Workshop Session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the August 9, 2018 Workshop Session minutes.

Attachments
Minutes 

65



STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 
 
On this the 9th day of August 2018 the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in a Workshop Session at the 
Corinth City Hall at 5:30 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, time, place and 
purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, Government Code, with the 
following members to wit: 
 
Members Present: 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Don Glockel, Council Member 
 
Members Absent: 
None  

 
Staff Members Present: 

Bob Hart, City Manager 
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
Cody Collier, Director of Public Works, Park Maintenance, Recreation, and Utility Operations 
Brenton Copeland, Technology Services Assistant Manager 
Helen-Eve Liebman, Planning and Development Director 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Curtis Birt, Lake Cities Fire Chief 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director of Finance & Administrative Services 
Chris Rodriquez, Assistant Finance Director 
Guadalupe Ruiz, Director of Human Resources 
Kevin Tyson, Police Lieutenant 
Brett Cast, Planning and Development Coordinator 
 
WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 

1.  Discuss Special Meeting Items on the Special Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed 
 session items as set forth in the Closed Session agenda items below. 
 
No discussion on Special Session Agenda items.  
 

3.  Receive a report, hold a discussion, and provide staff direction on the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Annual 
 Program of Services and Capital Improvement Program. 
 

 Bob Hart, City Manager - presented an overview on the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and 
 Sales Tax Fund.  
 

66



 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager - This relates to your one action item tonight. The current tax rate is $.53686 and the 
recommended tax rate that we are bringing to you in this budget is $.53000. 
 
Mayor Heidemann - what is the impact on the proposed rate per household? 
 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director of Finance and Administrative Services - I believe it was about $1400 was the 
annual and about a $91.00 increase from the prior year.  
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - that is if you take last year's average home value to this year's average home value. This 
includes all the new construction as well. A lot of new houses are going in and driving up the average cost of the 
homes.  
 

67



 
 
We had someone come in to City Hall yesterday interested in developing Parkridge. We are recommending that we 
have Parkridge Development design on this first year and get ourselves in position to deal with the Parkridge 
extension over the next couple of years. There is going to be some design money that is going to be needed and we 
recommend that we take a two-step approach. One is to do a continuing Resolution so that some point we can 
reimburse ourselves from any future debt issue and use about $1 million dollars out of Economic Development 
Corporation reserves to help get that effort started. 
 
We are looking at the design of the street, water, wastewater and the drainage. Then you figure out what kind of tool 
to use to move forward. We can do a Municipal Management District, we can do a PID, we can do a TIF or we can 
do a 380 Agreement. I think probably the 380 agreement will be the most appropriate. There is still a lot of loose 
ends here but I think we can give you an outline in trying to deal with this.  
 
Mayor Heidemann - doing that Parkridge Design, will that incorporate some of the requirements for the drainage 
down in Amity Village? 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - yes. The cost of the water, wastewater, drainage and the streets will be about $5.5 million. 
 

68



 
 
Councilmember Burke - overall healthcare costs came down in Texas. Do you have any confidence with anybody 
telling you that they think they have actually figured out this market and there will be a little more price stability 
going forward or it could go up 40% next year like it has? 
 
Guadalupe Ruiz, Human Resource Director - the influence and the result of the rates that we have has to do a lot 
with our loss ratio. In FY 16/17 we had about 116% of loss ratio and that is why we got the increase. This time we 
were at 63% so that has made a huge difference.  
 
Councilmember Burke - so our rate drop was not market based it was our loss ratio? 
 
Guadalupe Ruiz, Human Resource Director - correct.  
 
 

 
 
 

69



 
 
Mayor Heidemann - in determining the increases that you have I presume that you have gone out and done some 
surveys in the market place as far as the benchmark against these increases? 
 
Guadalupe Ruiz, Human Resource Director - correct. When it comes to public safety, we look at those cities in 
the middle range where 50% pays more and 50% pays less and looking at those in the middle, the distance for our 
salaries to get to that middle is at least 7%. We need a 7% increase to get to the middle of the market.  
 
For the general government employees, we have not been able to catch up with the ranges and we have 80% of 
employees below the mid. We are proposing to move the pay scale by 5%.  
 

70



 
 
Councilmember Burke - on the Resources Officers, is that something that we requested or the school district? 
 
Debra Walthall, Chief of Police - that was requested by Lake Dallas ISD and then they notified us that they no 
longer wanted to do that. They do it when there is a recent school shooting. They have talked to us about it in the 
past about adding more Resource Officers and then backed out.  
 
Councilmember Garber - what does 1 officer cost us on average? 
 
Debra Walthall, Chief of Police - for 1 officer it would be $87,500. 
 
Mayor Heidemann - how many open positions do we have now? 
 
Debra Walthall, Chief of Police - we currently have 5 and we are having problems filling those positions right now. 
They go out and research those pay plans and some want to go to bigger departments, some want more money up 
front. We instituted the lateral but because we have so many people that has not advanced in the step plan it is not 
fair to bring some of those in at a higher rate of pay.  
 
Councilmember Garber - the $60,000 in new program funding, is most of that related to increases in pay? 
 
Debra Walthall, Chief of Police - that is trying to get the radios that we have to have up and running by 2023 and 
that is just a portion of what they are going to cost. 
 
Mayor Heidemann - you currently have 5 open positions and you have 4 here that you requested that are unfunded, 
is that correct? 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - when these apartments start to fill up and you get these new subdivisions on the ground 
we are going to need people. You will see this come back with a recommendation for funding in the next couple of 
years. You will have more value on the ground to help pay for them as well.  

71



Mayor Heidemann - of the existing positions that you have now, two of those positions are funded out of the Crime 
Control is that correct? That is an additional funding that you have over and above what you are requesting is that 
correct? 
 
Debra Walthall, Chief of Police - yes, that is correct.  
 
 

 
 

 

72



Mayor Heidemann - under our current contract with the other 3 cities, they are not going to underwrite any of the 
additional cost for the fire station #3 is that correct? 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - that is correct.  
 
Mayor Heidemann - and that is what is incorporated here as far as the additional cost of opening station #3 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - yes. A lot of this is going to be timing. The Safer Grant is looking very positive. We will 
need to be moving aggressively to start recruiting people in the November time frame and absolutely drop dead date 
to have them on board will be in early January.  
 
Councilmember Glockel - is there still some negotiations for the other 3 cities to buy in to 3 of the fire fighter 
positions when the contracts get negotiated? 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - they will pay their share of 3 with the new contracts.  
 

 
 
 
Mayor Heidemann - has the communication position been filled yet? 
 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director of Finance and Administrative Services - no, we just sent out questionnaires 
and an assignment so we can see their writing styles and they are due back on Monday. We are looking at having 
interviews around the 18th and 19th of August. We do have a lot of qualified applicants.  
 
Mayor Heidemann - will that person oversee the website, all the boards out here representing... 
 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director of Finance and Administrative Services - we have a lot of folks that have been 
previous web masters and a lot graphic designs so we are hoping to get someone with great expertise.  
 

73



Mayor Heidemann - are we current with all of our software updates in terms of finance? 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director of Finance and Administrative Services - no, in the current year budget, we 
budgeted to upgrade our financial system, utility billing and municipal court and we had to have funding available 
before we could get on the waiting list and the waiting list was over a year long to be able to start the process to 
upgrade so we are not going to be able to start that until December or January of 2019. We should be done with it by 
the end of next fiscal year.  
 

 
 
We talked about the summer camp and expanding it so this cost will be offset by revenues.  
 
Councilmember Johnson - when we expand the summer camp where are we moving to? 
 
Cody Collier, Director of Public Works - that is the part we are working on right now. We have several options. 
We tried to work out something with Classic Academy because they are using our ball fields for their sporting events 
for practice and they are paying us so we thought we might do a little trade off and use their facilities and they can 
use ours. We are still working on that and if that does not work out then we will start looking at some of the other 
schools.  
 
Councilmember Johnson - anything new going on in our neighborhood parks? 
 
Cody Collier, Director of Public Works - the only thing we are looking at for this year is putting in a rubber mulch 
and that is in the Special Revenue funds. It is much more expensive up front but we are spending about $10,000 to 
$12,000 a year on Tri-bar and you have to top that stuff off every year and a lot of regulations to it as well. The rubber 
mulch we put down and don't have to touch it again for 15 years. It does not decompose or float and run off it is a 
much more long term product.  
 
Mayor Heidemann - we applied with TXDOT for the Green Ribbon Program do you have the status on that? 
 

74



Cody Collier, Director of Public Works - I just received an email from TXDOT about 5 minutes before this meeting 
started congratulating us on our acceptance. They sent me the information and said they would begin in spring of 
2019. The state is going to fund $397,000 and we just need to continue the maintenance side of it.  
 
Mayor Heidemann - is that for FM 2181 and FM 2499? 
 
Cody Collier, Director of Public Works - Yes.  
 

 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager - a lot of this is dealing with the work on the Strategic Plan and the feedback there. The 
GIS Analyst will be an Interlocal Agreement between us and LCMUA so half of that position will be funded by 
LCMUA. We should have that on the agenda on September 20th when you consider the budget.  
 
Councilmember Burke - so the $84,929 is what we will pay and then we will have a revenue for half that? 
 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director of Finance and Administrative Services - correct.  
 
Mayor Heidemann - on the Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Parks Master Plan, what is the total scope of 
that? That's a lot of money. 
 
Helen -Eve Liebman - it is a Comprehensive Plan that is designed to project the future vision that you established 
for the City. It has everything from land use as well as land use descriptions. We have also added a park plan and 
trail plan to the comprehensive plan because we seriously need an update to that plan. It has a lot of strategies and 
goals, there is a lot of work sessions with an identified community Steering Committee that would be selected by the 
Council to work on what our goals and objectives are. It is recommended that the Comprehensive Plan be evaluated 
every 5 years and I believe we are at 8 to 9 years.  
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - we want to have a parks plan in place before we go forward with any real park 
development, park improvements, or baseball fields or lighting because if you get that stuff included in the parks 

75



master plan then that becomes an eligible activity to apply for grants. So all that stuff you saw in the CIP where we 
pushed it out for several years, part of the reason you do that is because you want to get this parks master plan in 
place and then you can get a little help planning forward.  
 

 
This picture is Parkridge. These are things that are starting to bubble now. We got a submittal yesterday and this 
becomes the driver of what we are talking about. The idea conceptually would be to come in here do the design, a 
380 agreement with all of these property owners so that we can get some cost recovery for those improvements and 
bring that back to Council to get this done. Getting the water, sewer and the streets all up is about $5.5 million.  
 
 
 

76



 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager - this is the forecast for the next 3 years. It takes us to the length of the existing fire 
contract. This has all the fire house #3 staffing and picking everything up and carrying everything forward and we 
are still within all the financial policies.  
 
 

 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager - when we talked about Parkridge, we are recommending that we pull $1 million initially 

77



from the Economic Development Corporation reserves.  
 
Councilmember Johnson - the $200,000 for Project Incentives, is that for business incentives grants and things 
like that? 
 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director - correct and it is an increase because the board 
revised the business improvement grant program.  
 
Councilmember Garber - have we identified businesses or types of businesses that we are going to be reaching 
with these incentives or is this a fund to be allocated? 
 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director - this is more for our existing businesses to 
help them out. Then for businesses that we are targeting that is where we are going to use the Chapter 380 
Agreement Tax Abatement.  
 
Councilmember Garber - so the $200,000, do we know where that is going to go? 
 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director - no not necessarily. It would be on a first 
come first serve basis. If there is a restaurant that needs to update its facade they would apply under the business 
improvement grant program and that is how we would help them out.  
 
Councilmember Garber - the $1 million dollars that is in Parkridge Development design that will be in addition to 
a potential 380 agreement? 
 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director - I think from those conversations we wanted 
to be a part of either the 380 agreement or any other mechanism that would work best for the City to help develop 
in that area.  
 
Councilmember Garber - so the $1 million dollars could be through a 380 agreement? 
 
 Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director - yes. 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - the million dollars is as you sit down and start talking to people you need to know 
some cost estimate of what it is going to cost to build streets, water and wastewater and you begin to put all that 
together.  
 
Councilmember Burke - so the million is what it is going to cost to put together a plan so we can have a workable 
380 agreement? 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - correct. To de the design work.  
  

78



 
Councilmember Burke - did you pick out trees you are going to replace? 
 

Cody Collier, Public Works Director - we are still in the middle of doing a full city wide tree inventory. We are 
working towards getting Tree City USA Certified and one of the requirements is $2.00 per capita so we need about 
$50,000 to show good faith and that we intend on maintaining our trees and replacing them. That money goes towards 
replacements, planting, if we have a disease outbreak we would hire an arborists etc.. that money is there for a lot of 
things and if none of those occur we do have areas that we have identified through our tree survey we are currently 
doing that are dead or in the process of dying and that would allow us to replace them all.  
 

79



 
 

 

 
 
Mayor Heidemann - are we on track for the transponders? 
 
Cody Collier, Public Works Director - yes.  
 
Councilmember Glockel - under Technology Replacement, can someone explain to me what the $111,740 is for 

80



and how that all goes together? 
 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director of Finance and Administrative Services - the most expensive is the MDT's for 
Public Safety. I think there is 5 in police and 4 in fire. 
 
Brenton Copeland -Technology Services Assistant Manager - These are on a replacement cycle so essentially 5 
of the police vehicles will get new laptops every 5 years and 4 laptops in fire department will be replaced every 4 
years. I think they cost about $5,000/$6,000 each and this is all the bells and whistles you have to have on them.   
 
The GIS Surface Studio is for our GIS Analyst to be able to draw better maps and accomplish his job a lot easier.  
 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director of Finance and Administrative Services - we will take Garrett's existing 
computer and move that down to the 2nd GIS position and get Garrett a newer one.  
 
Cody Collier, Public Works Director - the water meters are for new growth and some of the funds will be for 
meters that are 15 and 20 years old that need to be replaced. They began to slow down on the reading and need to be 
replaced for accurate billing.  
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

81



 
 

 

 

 
 

82



 
 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director of Finance and Administrative Services - we have anticipated or estimated we 
will have 5% growth for two years, drop down to 4% and 0 after that so we don't know exactly when that bubble is 
going to be so we try to be conservative as much as we can. The bars are the expenditures that is how much of our 
existing debt and our debt payment from year to year. You can see in 2020 it drops a little bit flattens out and then 
again in 2027/28 it drops again. When those elements drop that is when where we have the debt capacity to be able 
to issue debt and leave your tax rate flat for the debt service fund.  
 
This year we had to drop the debt rate down to .10289 so we are assuming that if you keep that tax rate flat and we 
have those growths and AV Value you would generate about $2.6 million this first year in debt, 2.4, in 2020/21, 1.5 
in 2021/22 for a total of 9.02 over these years. You issue the debt in one year and your debt service payment does 
not come up until the following year. So we are going to issue the debt in 2018/19 but the first payment will not be 
until 2019/2020 and that when we need to see if we have the capacity to issue that without any tax increments or tax 
increases.  
 

After year 5 if we end up with 0% growth we might need about 0.75 cent increase in 2023/24 but again that is 5 
years out. If we have more than 5% growth then we won't need that tax rate increase so we try to build a very 
conservative model.  
 
Mayor Heidemann - the different projects that we want to proceed with this year, we are going to have available 
funds to be able to do that? 
 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director of Finance and Administrative Services - correct. 
 

83



 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 7:40 P.M. 

 
AYES: All 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of    , 2018.  
 
 
       
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

84



   
    CONSENT ITEM    4.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 09/06/2018  
Title: August 9, 2018 Special Session
Submitted For: Kim Pence, City Secretary  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the August 9, 2018 Special Session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are minutes from the August 9, 2018 Special Session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the August 9, 2018 Special Session minutes.

Attachments
Minutes 

85



STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 
 
On this the 9th day of August 2018 the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in Special Session at 
the Corinth City Hall at 7:46 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, 
time, place and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, 
Government Code, with the following members to wit: 
 
Members Present: 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member  
Tina Henderson, Council Member 
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Don Glockel, Council Member 
 
Members Absent: 
None 
 
Staff Members Present: 

Bob Hart, City Manager 
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
Cody Collier, Director of Public Works, Park Maintenance, Recreation, and Utility Operations 
Brenton Copeland, Technology Services Assistant Manager 
Helen-Eve Liebman, Planning and Development Director 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Curtis Birt, Lake Cities Fire Chief 
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director of Finance & Administrative Services 
Chris Rodriquez, Assistant Finance Director 
Guadalupe Ruiz, Director of Human Resources 
Kevin Tyson, Police Lieutenant 
Brett Cast, Planning and Development Coordinator 
 

CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE: 

"Honor the Texas Flag: I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible".  
 
Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 7:46 p.m., Councilmember Garber delivered the 

invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance and Texas Pledge. 

 
CITIZENS COMMENTS 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than 
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will 
be limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council 
and may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input 
form if you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be 
addressed to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of 
Ordinance of the City of Corinth. 
 

No citizen comments were made. 
 

86



BUSINESS:   

 

1.Consider approval of a resolution of the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas placing a proposal on 
the September 20, 2018 City Council Public Meeting Agenda to adopt a 2018 tax rate that will exceed the 
lower of the rollback rate or effective tax rate; calling two public hearings on a tax increase to be held on 
August 21, 2018, and September 6, 2018;  requiring publication of a  Notice of 2018 Tax Year Proposed 
Property Tax Rate in accordance with the law; and providing an effective date. 
 
Councilmember Glockel - if we propose the .53000 we can always reduce the rate if we choose to we just 
can't go above that correct? 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - that is correct.  
 
MOTION made by Councilmember Burke to approve a Resolution placing a proposal on the September 
20, 2018 Council Agenda to consider a FY 2018-2019 tax rate of $.53000 per one hundred dollars ($100) 
of valuation and to set the public hearings on the proposal to increase total tax revenues for Tuesday, August 
21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. and Thursday, September 6, 2018 at 7:00 p.m., with each meeting taking place at the 
Corinth Municipal Chambers at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. Seconded by Councilmember 
Garber. 
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Henderson, Glockel 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

The purpose of this section is to allow each councilmember the opportunity to provide general 

updates and/or comments to fellow councilmembers, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future 

events. Also, in accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any 

Councilmember may direct that an item be added as a business item to any future agenda. 

 
Councilmember Henderson - next Tuesday, August 14, 2018 at 5:30 p.m. the City of Corinth and Johnson 
Controls is having a Chamber Mixer and you all are invited.  
 
Councilmember Glockel - would like to request the presentation on budget prior to the meeting to review.  
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - I can't get them to you as quick as the packet because that goes out on Friday 
but we can get it to you by that following Monday.  
 
Mayor Heidemann - the Community Breakfast will be held on Tuesday, August 14 at 7:00 a.m. at the 
Lake Dallas High School. 
 

 

There was no Closed Session during the Regular meeting.  

 

CLOSED SESSION 
The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any 
of the above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas 
Government Code. 

87



 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated 
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts 
with chapter 551. 
 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an 
open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations 
with a third person. 
 

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, 
or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee. 
 
Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, 
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is 
conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive 
to a business prospect. 
 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City  
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its 
Attorney on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 
 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION 
ITEMS. 
 
ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 7:50 P.M. 
 
AYES: All 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of    , 2018.  
 
 
       
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

88



   
    CONSENT ITEM    5.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 09/06/2018  
Title: August 16, 2018 Workshop Session
Submitted For: Kim Pence, City Secretary  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the August 16, 2018 Workshop Session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are minutes from the August 16, 2018 Workshop Session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the August 16, 2018 Workshop Session minutes.

Attachments
Minutes 

89



STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 
 
On this the 16th day of August 2018 the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in Workshop Session 
at the Corinth City Hall at 5:30 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, 
time, place and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, 
Government Code, with the following members to wit: 
 
Members Present: 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member  
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Don Glockel, Council Member 
 
Members Absent: 

Tina Henderson, Council Member 
 
Staff Members Present: 

Bob Hart, City Manager 
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
Cody Collier, Director of Public Works, Park Maintenance, Recreation, and Utility Operations 
Brenton Copeland, Technology Services Assistant Manager 
Ben Rodriquez, Planning and Development Manager 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Brett Cast, Engineering Services Coordinator 
Helen-Eve Liebman, Planning and Development Director 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Chris Rodriquez, Assistant Finance Director 
Guadalupe Ruiz, Director of Human Resources 
Lori Levy, Senior Planner 
Patricia Adams, Messer, Rockefeller, & Fort 
 
WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 

1.  Discuss Regular Meeting Items on the Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of 
 closed session items as set forth in the Closed Session agenda items below. 
 
No discussion on Regular Session Agenda items.  
 

2.  Receive a report, hold a discussion, and provide staff direction on the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 
 Annual Program of Services and Capital Improvement Program. 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - discussed the Utility Rates, Utility Fund Department Overview, Storm 
Drainage Fund Department Overview, Utility CIP, and the Economic Development Related Strategies. 
 
This is the current rate schedule that was adopted last year. We have been through about 9/10 months on 
these rates. Right now we have Carolyn Marshal, Consulting is working with us to go through all those 
costs so we can bring it back to you in January for more discussion.  
 

90



We separated the City cost and the Upper Trinity Cost.  If we looked at the water side, the Upper Trinity 
costs are going up by about $132,000 or 3.5%.  
 
On the wastewater side, the increase is going from $16.15 to $16.19 for a total of $21,980 or 1.59%.  
 
Mayor Heidemann - these increases are reflected because we got a rate increase from Upper Trinity is 
the correct? 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - yes. These are Upper Trinity increases in water and wastewater.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

91



 
 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - what we have projected to the end of the fiscal year so this would be August 
and September consumption, we have estimated that we will bring in about $8,253,379. The budget in 
terms of revenue was just under $7.6 million so we over collected on the water side of about $600,000. 
 
On the wastewater we have projected that we will come in at about $3.3 million and that is exactly what 
we had projected.  
 
Councilmember Garber - when we are running through this revenue and we have over collected by 
600,000 can we tell how many of those folks bumped up into the 50,000 gallon range when we re-visit 
this in January? 
 
Chris Rodriquez - Assistant Finance Director - yes, because we reports that we keep.  
 
Councilmember Garber - was it a lot? 
 
Chris Rodriquez - Assistant Finance Director - it was a fair amount the first month. The second month, 
I think it went up not quite as much in July as it did in June so the increase was not as big.

92



 
 
Utility Fund Overview: 
 

 
 
Mayor Heidemann - what makes up the Utilities Communication? What is included in that? 
 
Chris Rodriquez, Assistant Finance Director - that is the Upper Trinity fixed costs is the majority of 
that. What we pay for water/wastewater disposal. 
 

93



Councilmember Johnson - can we explain the Utilities Communications in the bar graph so when a 
citizen looks at that they know what that is. The citizens don't have a clue what that means.  
 
Chris Rodriquez, Assistant Finance Director - yes, we can do that.  
 
Councilmember Garber - also, as it relates to water, the water testing that we put online, I was asked to 
give a breakdown for the water quality test and we will need some training on that. At some point as we 
are working through this process can we provide some information on that testing? 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - yes. 
 
Mayor Heidemann - under Professional Fees, what is encumbered in that? 
 
Cody Collier, Public Works Director - that should be your engineering costs and some of the contract 
services costs. 
 
Chris Rodriquez, Assistant Finance Director - our TML insurance is in there and also Upper Trinity 
facility service is the biggest part of that fee. 
 
Mayor Heidemann - can we define that line item so people will know exactly what is coming out of 
there.  
 
Chris Rodriquez, Assistant Finance Director - yes. Out of that $1.5 million the Upper Trinity Facility 
charge is $1.4 million.  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

94



 
 
Mayor Heidemann - what is included in the Professional Fees here? 
 
Chris Rodriquez, Assistant Finance Director - the majority of that is our Data Pros contract to process 
the bills and send them out for us. The other part is garbage and that would be what we pay Community 
Waste Disposal (CWD) 
 
Councilmember Glockel - what is the $806,000 for? Is that what we are paying CWD? 
 
Chris Rodriquez, Assistant Finance Director - Yes, we collect their fees for them and pay them only on 
the residential side/ 
 
Councilmember Glockel - where is the other side of that income? 
 
Chris Rodriquez, Assistant Finance Director - it is in the garbage revenues. All it shows here is the 
expenditures.  
 

95



 
 
Councilmember Glockel - the $601,000 is that the assumption of what it is going to take to finish Lake 
Sharon/Oakmont to FM 2499? 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - when we did the Lake Sharon Extension, we did all of that out of the street 
fund and what we have done now is gone back and allocated those costs to the appropriate places. The 
water line is related to that existing contract for the Lake Sharon Extension. $601,000 of that will be charged 
to water and then you will see another one charged to storm water and the balance goes to streets. 
 
Councilmember Glockel - the $4,250,000 is that all engineering and planning? 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - that is engineering, planning, ROW and easements if we need it and for the 
elevated storage tank at 180 feet in elevation. 
 
Councilmember Glockel - that $4.2 million has the price of the tank in it? 
 

Bob Hart, City Manager - yes.  
 
Storm Drainage Fund Overview: 

 

96



 
 
Councilmember Glockel - what is the $400,000 one-time charge for? 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - this is part of the match for the grant for Lynchburg Creek. We are going to 
need $1 million to match and $400,000 of it comes out of the storm-water fund and $600,000 comes out 
of the general fund. The bulk of the grant that we do will be a 75/25 grant so we are assuming about $4 
million and then our $1 million match will give us a total of $5 million to work with. 
 

 
 

97



Capital and Debt Overview: 

 

 
Councilmember Glockel - you have a $90,000 waterline in FY 2020-21 budget and then there is a 
Parkridge waterline for $800,000 in FY 2021-22 where do they go? 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - based on what we have been talking about this would have to get adjusted. 
The Parkridge waterline would need to move to 2018-19. The $500,000 in FY 2019-20 would have to get 
moved up as well. The rest of it is in the streets.  
 
Councilmember Burke - we could do that? 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - yes. 
 
Legislation Preparation Strategies: 

 
Revenue Caps        

• Governor seeking a 4% property tax cap - or an even "better law" 

Spending Caps 

• For both the state and cities equal to population growth plus inflation 

Mayor Heidemann - some of the legislative changes that are being proposed for this upcoming legislative 
session could impact us dramatically. One of the things I have asked Bob to coach the Council on tonight 
is what impact some of these might have in terms of rollback taxes. Two that stuck out to me were the cap 
on revenues and also the cap on expenditures because either one of those two for what we are trying to 
accomplish here in terms of moving forward with our development could impact us.  
 

98



Bob Hart, City Manager - on the revenue, what is going to happen will happen so we will have to live 
with that. Generating the sales tax is the name of the game to deal with that.  
 
The spending caps, the way that we'll have shown some of this in the budget will help us because the trick 
you want to do is make sure you have base so when you start limiting what you can and can't do you want 
to make sure the base is as high as we can get it. One of the fortunate things we have this year is the flood 
grant because that is a one-time artificial boost in the budget and that will help establish that base going 
forward.  
 
The other thing I have asked Chris to look at is if we were to change out all of our light fixtures to LED, it 
will cost us $90,000 to $100,000 to do City Hall, that will save us about $8,000 a year so that is one that 
we will probably figure out how to put in. That will give us $100,000 to spend as part of the base but then 
it starts to save us $8,000.  
 
 
Economic Development Related Strategies: 

 

Bob Hart, City Manager - on the Parkridge Development, the capital cost is about $5.5 million. When 
you go in and look at the impact fees of all the development here it is $5.1 million. Without the City 
stepping up here, I don't think this would ever happen. For a developer to do a street where it is loaded 
only on one side of the street is not likely to happen particularly when he has to pay for that.  
 
Councilmember Burke - what you are trying to show us here is our impact fees could recoup our almost 
100% of the entire project costs. 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - yes. A lot of these costs are going to be by the developer. We probably 
should do the engineering up front. We would probably want a combination of a developer's participation 
agreement and 380 agreement. We will still need to have more conversation on this.  
 
 

 

99



Bob Hart, City Manager - you show this as a loan from the Economic Development Corporation and then 
you go back and talk about increasing your base and that is what we will effectively be doing.  
 
We have folks that want to do some development on Parkridge and FM 2181 and they can't do the 
development without wastewater service being dealt with and to do that is going to require a partnership 
with LCMUA. 
 
Councilmember Glockel - from FM 2181 to the lift station which is at Turbeville is that line going to be 
gravity fed from FM 2181, is that going to be our line or LCMUA's line? 
 
George Marshall, City Engineer - it will be our line to the City limit line which is the southern portion of 
Corinth. 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - conceptually what we recommend is to include this in the budget to help with 
that spending component. We still have to get LCMUA agreements and there is a lot of pieces that is 
ahead of us.  
 

 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - this is the idea of doing a TIF and it does give you a way of how we work with 
NCTC, THR, DCTA etc... and use the TIF to pay for the operational funds so you don't have to dip into 
your sales tax to do that. 
 
Councilmember Glockel - you mentioned the TIF and the sales tax issue but the names that you mentioned 
are not going to be taxable anyway. 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - right. When you think TIF, you always think Incremental for property values 
and what this boundary brings you is hotel revenue. I would suggest you look at using some hotel/motel 
tax revenues and running it back through NCTC or the hospital in some form or fashion and use that as 
backdoor way to provide for the cost of ridership on the A-Train. 
 

100



Mayor Heidemann - all of these components you are putting in the budget? You are putting $3 million in 
the base but it does not necessarily mean we have to spend it. 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - that is right and this will help the base. There is a whole lot of work between 
now and spending. 
 
 

 

 
 
 

101



 
 

 
There was no Closed Session  

 

CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any 
of the above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas 
Government Code. 
 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated 
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts 
with chapter 551. 
 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an 
open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations 
with a third person. 
 

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, 
or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee. 
 
Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, 
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is 
conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive 
to a business prospect. 
 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City 
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its 
Attorney on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 
 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION 
ITEMS. 
 
ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 6:50 P.M. 
 
AYES: All 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of    , 2018.  
 
 
       
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

102



   
    CONSENT ITEM    6.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 09/06/2018  
Title: August 16, 2018 Regular Session
Submitted For: Kim Pence, City Secretary  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the August 16, 2018 Regular Session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are minutes from the August 16, 2018 Regular Session. The minutes are in draft form and are not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the August 16, 2018 Regular Session minutes.

Attachments
Minutes 

103



STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 
 
On this the 16th day of August 2018 the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in Regular Session 
at the Corinth City Hall at 7:00 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, 
time, place and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, 
Government Code, with the following members to wit: 
 
Members Present: 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 
Sam Burke, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Lowell Johnson, Council Member  
Scott Garber, Council Member 
Don Glockel, Council Member 
 
Members Absent: 

Tina Henderson, Council Member 
 
Staff Members Present: 

Bob Hart, City Manager 
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
Cody Collier, Director of Public Works, Park Maintenance, Recreation, and Utility Operations 
Brenton Copeland, Technology Services Assistant Manager 
Ben Rodriquez, Planning and Development Manager 
George Marshall, City Engineer 
Brett Cast, Engineering Services Coordinator 
Helen-Eve Liebman, Planning and Development Director 
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director 
Chris Rodriquez, Assistant Finance Director 
Guadalupe Ruiz, Director of Human Resources 
Lori Levy, Senior Planner 
Patricia Adams, Messer, Rockefeller, & Fort 
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE: 

"Honor the Texas Flag: I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible".  
 
Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., Councilmember Garber delivered the 

invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance and Texas Pledge. 

 
PRESENTATION: 

 

1. Receive a presentation on the Scenic Cities Certification. 
 
Helen-Eve Liebman, Planning and Development Director - The Scenic City Certification Program is a 
project of Scenic Texas and its program partners, and is the first in the U.S. to incorporate a comprehensive 
set of model standards for design and development of public roadways and public spaces into one program. 
The program draws a direct correlation between the success of a city’s economic development efforts and 
the visual appearance of its public spaces and recognizes municipalities that implement high-quality scenic 
standards. 
 

104



To earn a Scenic City certification a city must initially meet three criteria before applying to the program 
including having a strictly regulated and enforced sign code, and a landscaping and tree planting program. 
Then, a city’s existing standards are assessed and scored based on a model of some 70+ possible criteria 
ranging from percentage of park and open space, strong litter enforcement laws, street lighting standards, 
to parking lot landscaping, utility line management, and more. Under the scoring system, an applicant earns 
Recognized, Bronze, Silver, Gold or Platinum Certification. 
 
Scenic City Certification program partners include the Texas Municipal League, Urban Land Institute – 
Austin, Urban Land Institute – Houston, Urban Land Institute – San Antonio, American Planning 
Association Texas, Houston-Galveston Area Council, American Council of Engineering Companies 
Houston, Hill Country Alliance, Keep Texas Beautiful, Texas Downtown Association, Texas Economic 
Development Council, Texas Historical Commission, North Central Texas Council of Governments, Scenic 
Houston and Scenic America 
 
The City of Corinth was one of thirteen cities recognized as a 2018 Certified Scenic City award recipient 
through the Scenic City Certification Program. The Certification Program recognizes cities for their 
demonstrated commitment to high-quality scenic standards for public roadways and public spaces. Corinth 
upgraded the existing certification status from bronze in 2014 to Silver in 2018.  
 
I would like to thank Patrick Hubbard, Development Coordinator for all his hard work and dedication on 
putting together the Scenic Cities Certification.  
 

PROCLAMATION - Live United Month 

 

Mayor Heidemann read the Proclamation into the record and proclaimed September 2018 as Live United 
Month.  
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one 

motion. Should the Mayor, a Councilmember, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item 

will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 

2. Consider and act on minutes from the July 19, 2018 Workshop Session. 
 
3. Consider and act on minutes from the July 19, 2018 Regular Session. 
 
4. Consider and act on a Resolution approving the "DRAFT" Denco Area 9-1-1 District Fiscal 
 Year 2019 Financial Plan. 
 
MOTION made by Councilmember Johnson to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Seconded by 
Councilmember Garber. 
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Glockel 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Henderson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

 

 

105



CITIZENS COMMENTS 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than 
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will 
be limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council 
and may be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input 
form if you desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be 
addressed to the Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of 
Ordinance of the City of Corinth. 
 

No citizen comments were made. 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING: 

 

 TO HEAR PUBLIC OPINION REGARDING A REQUEST FROM THE APPLICANT, 

 ALAN NELSON, AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE PROPERTY OWNERS, 

 IZMIT BECIRI AND RABIJE BECIRI FOR A ZONING CHANGE FROM PLANNED 

 DEVELOPMENT (PD) SF-A, SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (ATTACHED) TO 

 PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (PD) SF-A, SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
 (ATTACHED) WITH MODIFIED DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS ON 

 APPROXIMATELY 4.796 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN THE M.E.P. & P.R.R. CO. 

 SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 915, IN THE CITY OF CORINTH, DENTON COUNTY, 

 TEXAS.  (THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED ON THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LAKE 

 SHARON DRIVE AND S. CORINTH PARKWAY). 

 

Mayor Heidemann opened the Public Hearing at 7:30 p.m. No one spoke during the Public Hearing. 
 

Mayor Heidemann closed the Public Hearing at 7:31 p.m. 

 

5a. BUSINESS: 

 

 Consider and act on a zoning change from Planned Development (PD) SF-A, Single-Family 
 Residential (Attached) to Planned Development (PD) SF-A, Single-Family Residential 
 (Attached) with modified development standards on approximately 4.796 acres of land situated 
 in the M.E.P. & P.R.R. Co. Survey, Abstract No. 915, in the City of Corinth, Denton County, 
 Texas. (This property is located on the northwest corner of Lake Sharon Drive and S. Corinth 
 Parkway). 
 
 Lori Levy, Senior Planner - The applicant is proposing an amendment to the existing Planned 
 Development (PD) SF-A, Single-Family Residential (Attached) District with modified 
 development standards to revise the layout of the existing site plan.  The existing site plan was 
 approved for fifty-eight (58) townhome lots on the approximately 4.796-acre site at a density of 
 12.09 dwelling units per acre.  The proposed site plan shows only fifty-four (54) townhome lots 
 with seven (7) common  area lots at a reduced density of 11.26 dwelling units per acre.  
 
 Two (2) detention areas, one on the northwest corner of the property and one on the northeast end 
 of the property, as well as several 10’ drainage easements will serve to detain storm water on the 
 property. The common areas, detention ponds, drainage easements and private streets will be 
 maintained by a Homeowner’s Association.  The for-sale, custom townhomes will range from 
 approximately 1,512 square feet to 1,821 square feet on an average 2,448 square foot lot. 
 
 Prior to the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, public hearing notifications were sent to 

106



 the fifteen (15) property owners located within 200’ of the subject property.  A notice of public 
 hearing was posted on the subject property along Lake Sharon Drive and S. Corinth Parkway. 
  
 The applicant also scheduled a meeting through the Meadows Oak Homeowner’s Association to 
 meet with the adjacent homeowner’s and address any concerns per staff’s request.   That meeting 
 was held on July 18, 2018 with about 20 homeowners in attendance. 
 
 SURROUNDING PROPERTIES ZONING 
 
Subject Property                          (PD) SF-A, Single-Family Residential (Attached) 
North                                           (PD) Multi-Family Residential 
South                                  (PD) SF-4, Single-Family Residential (Detached); SF-4 Single-Family  
    (Detached) 
East                                              MX-C, Mixed-Use Non-Residential 
West                                            (PD) Multi-Family Residential 
 
 SURROUNDING PROPERTIES EXISTING LAND USE 
 
Subject Property                           Undeveloped 
North                                            Multi-Family, Residential 
South                                            Single-Family, Residential (Detached) 
East                                              Undeveloped 
West                                             Multi-Family, Residential 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended unanimous approval of the rezoning request at the 
July 23, 2018 meeting.  
 
Staff recommends approval.  
 
Alan Nelson, Nelson and Morgan Architects - this originally started in 2004 and was designed as one 
large lot that was going to be an apartment complex and nothing really happened on that until 2006. At that 
time it came back to the Council and was re-platted into the multi lot configuration that it is currently and 
was set up to be individual townhomes at that time. They got a permit to start the utilities, infrastructure 
work out there and so on. Once that work was completed everything stalled out again and nothing was ever 
built so it just sat that way for 13 years.  
 
We came in and we started about 18 months ago reworking the idea to take the infrastructure as it is and 
see if we couldn't configure that in a way to have townhomes that would actually work and profitable. We 
brought to you a request to rezone it and change up the number of lots to a total of 54 lots instead of the 
original 56 lots.  
 
We are proposing to put in a total of 54 units, 42 will be a full 3 bedroom 2.5 bath and they are all two-
story and a two car garage for the 3 bedroom units and one car garage units for the 2 bedroom units. We 
got those by increasing the lot size a little bit to make the units a little bigger. 
 
We have taken out the entrance on the southeast corner almost right on the corner of Lake Sharon. It is not 
necessary so we closed that off. We have access from Lake Sharon on the southwest corner.  
 
Currently we are proposing there will be over 156 trees adding on to the site. There will be a little over 
31,000 sq. feet of sodded area and open space and there are 6 street lights that is proposed to go in there.  
 

107



Councilmember Glockel - it talks about parking will only be allowed in the drive-ways, is there any street 
area that parking will be allowed in? 
 
Alan Nelson, Nelson and Morgan Architects - yes. There are 15 guest parking spaces we set up. 
Mayor Heidemann - are the parking spots going to conform to our new code?  
 
Alan Nelson, Nelson and Morgan Architects - yes, they are 9x18. 
 
MOTION made by Councilmember Glockel to approve the zoning change from Planned Development 
(PD) SF-A, Single-Family Residential (Attached) to Planned Development (PD) SF-A, Single-Family 
Residential (Attached) with modified development standards on approximately 4.796 acres of land situated 
in the M.E.P. & P.R.R. Co. Survey, Abstract No. 915, in the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas. (This 
property is located on the northwest corner of Lake Sharon Drive and S. Corinth  Parkway). Seconded by 
Councilmember Garber. 
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Glockel 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Henderson, 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
6.  PUBLIC HEARING: 

 

 TO HEAR PUBLIC OPINION REGARDING AMENDING THE CITY OF CORINTH 

 COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE BEING A PART OF THE UNIFIED 
 DEVELOPMENT CODE ORDINANCE NO. 13-05-02-08, AS AMENDED, SECTIONS 

 2.07.01 USES PERMITTED BY DISTRICT, 2.07.03 USE CHARTS, 2.07.04 

 CONDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, 2.09.01 LANDSCAPING 

 REGULATIONS, 2.09.03 VEHICLE PARKING REGULATIONS, 2.09.04 BUILDING 

 FAÇADE MATERIAL STANDARDS, 2.10.10 SPECIFIC USE PERMITS, AND SECTION 

 5.02 WORDS AND TERMS DEFINED. 

 

Mayor Heidemann opened the Public Hearing at 7:35 p.m. No one spoke during the Public Hearing. 
 

Mayor Heidemann closed the Public Hearing at 7:36 p.m. 

 

6a. Consider and act on amendments to the City of Corinth Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance 
 being a part of the Unified Development Code Ordinance No. 13-05-02-08, as amended, 
 Sections 2.07.01 Uses Permitted by District, 2.07.03 Use Charts, 2.07.04 Conditional 
 Development Standards, 2.09.01 Landscaping Regulations, 2.09.03 Vehicle Parking 
 Regulations, 2.09.04 Building Façade Material Standards, 2.10.10 Specific Use Permits, and 
 Section 5.02 Words and Terms Defined. 
 
Lori Levy, Senior Planner - staff is proposing the following amendments to various sections of the City 
of Corinth Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance being a part of the Unified Development Code Ordinance 
No. 13-05-02-08, as amended.  The proposed amendments include staff’s understanding from input 
received from the Commission and City Council in previous public hearings and workshops held regarding 
the proposed amendments to the Unified Development Code (UDC). 
 

Proposed Amendments to Section 2.07.03 Use Charts: 

 

108



1. Creating the following new Non-residential categories 

  

Automobile Rental 
Bed and Breakfast Home/Bed and Breakfast Inn 
Business Services 
Equipment and Machinery Sales and Rental, Major 
Equipment and Machinery Sales and Rental, Minor 
Food Truck 
Massage Therapy, Licensed 
Massage Therapy, Unlicensed 
Trailer Rental (Accessory Use) 
Truck Sales, Heavy Trucks 
Veterinary Office, including Indoor Runs 
Veterinary Office, including Outdoor Runs 
 

 2. Amending the following existing Non-residential Uses  

 

◦Amending Automobile or Other Motorized Vehicle Sales and Service Uses by splitting into Automobile 
Sales/Leasing, New and Automobile Sales, Used and amending Zoning Districts in which allowed.  
 
◦Amending Automobile Parts Store by amending Zoning Districts in which allowed. 
  
◦Amending Automobile Service Garage (Major) and Automobile Service Garage, (Minor) by amending 
Zoning Districts in which allowed. 
 
◦Amending Car Wash, Full Service and Car Wash, Self Service by amending Zoning Districts in which 
allowed. 
 
◦Amending College or University by amending the category to also include “Trade School”.  
 
◦Amending Concrete Batch Plant by splitting into Concrete Batching Plant, Permanent and Concrete 
Batching Plant, Temporary and amending Zoning Districts in which allowed. 
 
◦Amending Exterminating Company by amending Zoning Districts in which allowed. 
 
◦Amending Farmer’s Market by amending Zoning Districts in which allowed. 
 
◦Amending Feed Store by amending Zoning Districts in which allowed. 
 
◦Amending Gas or Oil Well and Production by amending Zoning Districts in which allowed. 
 
◦Amending Gasoline Service Station/Car Wash by clarifying Use Classification as Gasoline Service Station 
with or without Car Wash and by amending Zoning Districts in which allowed. 
 
◦Amending Hotel to Hotel, Full-Service or Limited Service and by amending Zoning Districts in which 
allowed. 
 
◦Amending Kennel/Veterinary Office to Kennel with Indoor Runs Only and Kennel with Outdoor Runs 
and by amending Zoning Districts in which allowed. 
 
◦Amending Restaurant or Cafeteria, with or without Curb or Drive-In Service by splitting out Restaurant 

109



without Drive-In or Drive-through Service and Restaurant with Drive-In or Drive-through Service and by 
amending Zoning Districts in which allowed. 
 
◦Amending RV Park by amending Zoning Districts in which allowed. 
 
◦Amending Storage Units, Mini by amending Zoning Districts in which allowed. 
 
◦Amending Taxi Garage or Dispatch by amending Zoning Districts in which allowed. 
 
◦Amending Motel, Motor Hotel, or Tourist Court by amending Zoning Districts in which allowed.  This 
Use Classification is not a permitted use in any Zoning District. 
 
◦Amending Water Storage by amending Zoning Districts in which allowed. 
 
◦Amending Vehicle Parking Regulations cross-reference column (last column in the heading) and replacing 
with "Reserved for Future Reference".  The parking regulations are in a separate section in the UDC, and 
this will allow a place holder for a future Zoning District or other information.  
 
  3. Only reflecting recently approved Photovoltaic Systems (Attached and Detached) that may 

 not be showing on Existing Use Charts. 

  

Proposed Amendments to Section 2.07.04 Conditional Standards  

 

1. Amending Conditional Standards for previous Use Classification of Automobile or Other 

 Motorized Vehicle Sales and Service Uses and reclassifying as Automobile Sales, Used, 
 Automobile Sales/Leasing, New, Trailer Rental, and Truck Sales, Heavy Trucks Standards. 
 
◦ Adding additional standards as shown as highlighted in Lavender in the attached Draft Ordinance under 
Section 2.07.04. Conditional Standards. 
 

 2. Amending Conditional Standards for previous Use Classification of Concrete Batch Plant by 

 renaming and splitting into Concrete Batching Plant, Permanent and Concrete Batching 

 Plant, Temporary. 
 

◦Clarifying that Concrete Batching Plant, Permanent is not a permitted use. 
◦Amending Conditional Standards for Concrete Batching Plant, Temporary by removing SUP requirement, 
revising language accordingly, including adjusting names of Adjoining Zoning Districts to match names of 
those Zoning Districts. 
 

 3. Creating Conditional Standards for newly created Food Truck Use Classification as 
 highlighted in Blue in the attached copy of the Draft Ordinance under Section 2.07.04. 
 Conditional Standards. 
 
 4. Amending Conditional Standards for previous Use Classification of Gasoline Service 
 Station/Car Wash and renaming to Gasoline Filling or Service Station with or without Car 
 Wash, and adding, “and with or without Convenience Store, and Car Wash with or without 
 Gasoline Filling Service Station and with or without Convenience Store for clarification. 
 
◦ Adding additional Conditional Standards under Section 2.07.04. Conditional Standards. 

 

 5. Creating Conditional Standards for newly created Use Classification of Hotels (Bed and 

110



 Breakfast Home/Bed and Breakfast Inn, Full-Service and Limited Service) under Section  2.07.04. 
 Conditional Standards. 
 
 6. Amending Conditional Standards for previous classification of Kennel/Veterinarian Office 
 and only reclassifying as Kennel, Indoor and Outdoor Runs as highlighted in Lavender in the 
 attached Draft Ordinance under Section 2.07.04. Conditional Standards. 
 
 7. Creating Conditional Standards for newly created Restaurant, Drive-In Standards under  Section 
 2.07.04. Conditional Standards. 
  

Proposed Amendments to Section 2.09.03 Vehicle Parking Regulations  
 

1. Creating new parking regulations for newly created Bed and Breakfast Home/Bed and 
 Breakfast Inn Use classification under Section 2.09.03. Vehicle Parking Regulations. 
 
 2. Adding new parking regulations for Car Wash, Full-Service or Self-Service Use classification 
 that was missing under Section 2.09.03. Vehicle Parking Regulations. 
 
 3. Amending various classification use names to match those proposed in the Use Chart and 
 amending parking for Restaurant with Outdoor Seating Areas under Section 2.09.03. Vehicle 
 Parking Regulations. 
  

Proposed Amendments to Subsection 5.02 Words and Terms Defined  

 

1. Repealing various definitions to match the amended Use Classifications and Zoning Districts 
 in which allowed in the proposed Use Chart under Subsection 5.02 Words and Terms 
 Defined. 
 
 2. Amending various definitions to match the amended Use Classifications and Zoning Districts 
 in which allowed in the proposed Use Chart under Subsection 5.02 Words and Terms 
 Defined. 
 
 3. Adopting new definitions to reflect the newly created Use Classifications in the proposed Use 
 Charts under Subsection 5.02 Words and Terms Defined. 
  

Proposed Amendments to Subsection F. Alternative Compliance of Section 2.09.01 Landscaping 

Regulations: 

  

1. Amending the Alternative Compliance process for Alternative Landscaping to allow the 

 request to be submitted through the Site Plan process. 
  

Proposed Amendments to Subsection D. Alternative Compliance of Section 2.09.04 Building 

Materials: 

  

1. Amending the Alternative Compliance process for Alternative Building Materials to allow 
 the request to be submitted through the Site Plan process. 
 
 2. Revising some of the language within this section to reflect recent change for administrative 
 site plan approvals, where applicable, and to provide some flexibility in allowing alternative 
 building materials. 
 

111



Staff recommends approval of the proposed amendments to the various sections of the City of Corinth 
Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance being a part of the Unified Development Code Ordinance No. 13-05-
02-08, as amended. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended unanimous approval of the proposed UDC 
Amendments with the following stipulations:  
 
1. Allow the Bed and Breakfast Home/Bed and Breakfast Inn by SUP with the Conditional Standards 
 in all of the single-family districts, as well; 
 
2. Allow Equipment and Machinery Sales and Rental, Minor as an allowable use in the MX-R and 
 MX-C districts, as well to allow bicycle rentals in those districts; 
 
3. Leave Motel, Motor Hotel or Tourist Court in the Use Chart to reflect that it is not allowable in any 
 districts as proposed. 
 
MOTION made by Councilmember Johnson to approve amendments to the City of Corinth Comprehensive 
Zoning Ordinance being a part of the Unified Development Code Ordinance No. 13-05-02-08, as amended, 
Sections 2.07.01 Uses Permitted by District, 2.07.03 Use Charts, 2.07.04 Conditional Development 
Standards, 2.09.01 Landscaping Regulations, 2.09.03 Vehicle Parking Regulations, 2.09.04 Building 
Façade Material Standards, 2.10.10 Specific Use Permits, and Section 5.02 Words and Terms Defined. 
Seconded by Councilmember Glockel. 
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Glockel 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Henderson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 

7. Consider and act on a request for payment in lieu of required parkland dedication on 4.796 
 acres out of the M.E.P. & P.R.R. Co. Survey, Abstract No. 915, in the City of Corinth, Denton 
 County, Texas.  (This property is located on the northwest corner of Lake Sharon Drive and 
 S. Corinth Parkway). 
 
Lori Levy, Senior Planner - this item is related to Public Hearing item #5. Section 3.05.10, E. Land 
Dedication Requirements section allows the City Council to approve a developer’s request for dedication 
of land for a park, dedication of land for a trail, dedication of money in lieu of the land dedication, or a 
combination thereof. 
  
The applicant is proposing a dedication of money in lieu of the land dedication in the amount of $29,700.00 
to meet the required $550.00 per unit for residential subdivisions for the proposed 54-unit Corinthian 
Townhomes. 
 
MOTION made by Councilmember Burke to approve a request for payment in lieu of required parkland 
dedication on 4.796 acres out of the M.E.P. & P.R.R. Co. Survey, Abstract No. 915, in the City of Corinth, 
Denton  County, Texas. (This property is located on the northwest corner of Lake Sharon Drive and S. 
Corinth Parkway). Seconded by Councilmember Glockel. 
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Glockel 

112



NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Henderson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

8. Consider and act on an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for library services with the City 
 of Lake Dallas. 
 
Bob Hart, City Manager - the City currently has an Interlocal agreement to permit residents to access 
library services with the City of Denton Library system.  The proposed agreement with the City of Lake 
Dallas would allow the same access to the Lake Dallas library, i.e., a resident would apply for a permit and 
with a proof of residency in Corinth would receive a library card.  At that point, Lake Dallas would invoice 
the City (on a monthly basis) for the annual rate of $25 per family. 
 
MOTION made by Councilmember Garber to approve an Interlocal Agreement for library services with 
the City of Lake Dallas. Seconded by Councilmember Burke. 
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Glockel 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Henderson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

9. Consider and act on the acceptance of BlueCross BlueShield of Texas' proposal for City’s 
 employee medical insurance benefits for FY 2018-2019, and authorization for the City 
 Manager to execute any necessary documents. 
 
Guadalupe Ruiz, Human Resource Director - The City of Corinth solicited proposals for the City’s 
employee medical insurance benefits for the 2018-2019 fiscal year.  Four qualified proposals for medical 
insurance benefits were received during the Request for Proposals (RFP) process which closed on May 31, 
2018.  
 
After review and evaluation of benefits and proposed costs, our benefits consultant (IPS Advisors, LLP) 
initiated negotiations.  Due to the decrease in the City’s loss ratio and having created an employee benefit 
trust, the renewal with the current carrier (BCBS) initially represented a 15.7% decrease from the rates for 
the 2017-18 fiscal year. After negotiations, the proposal from BlueCross BlueShield of Texas represented 
a 20.8% decrease of current rates. These rates are guaranteed until September 30, 2019. 
 
When considering the proposed funding changes and the expected census (in addition to the proposed new 
rates), the outcome is a total decrease of 26.56% ($641,545) for the 2018-19 fiscal year over the 2017-18 
fiscal year budgeted rates. 
 
The City will continue to offer a dual option health plan; including a “Base” plan that offers a High 
Deductible plan with a Health Savings Account (HSA), and a “Buy Up” plan that offers a Traditional PPO 
plan with copays and deductibles (new).  Those employees on the “Buy Up” plan will have the opportunity 
to participate in a Flexible Spending Account (FSA).  Both plans will have the Blue Choice Network (last 
year’s network) currently available only for the employees in the “Buy Up” plan. For the High Deductible 
plan, the deductible will go from $2,600 to $2,700; and the coinsurance benefit will go from 80% to 100%. 
 
Full Time Employees Funding - The City will continue to fund 100% of the employee-only coverage 
premium cost.  The City contribution for the dependent cost will change from 75% to 70%. The 

113



aforementioned City contributions are based on the “Base” plan regardless of the plan option the employee 
chooses.  This will allow the City to better align with benchmarks for the City’s total dependent subsidy. 
The HSA contribution from the City will remain at $1,000 per employee per year.  
  
Part Time (0.5 FTE) Employees Funding - City funding for the employee only coverage will continue to 
be 50% of the Base plan premium. The City funding for the dependent cost will continue to be 0% of the 
Base plan premiums. The HSA contribution from the City will remain at $500 per employee per year. 
 
Staff recommends acceptance of BlueCross BlueShield of Texas' proposal for City’s employee medical 
insurance benefits for FY 2018-2019, and authorization for the City Manager to execute any necessary 
documents. 
 
MOTION made by Councilmember Johnson to accept BlueCross BlueShield of Texas' proposal for City’s 
employee medical insurance benefits for FY 2018-2019, and authorization for the City Manager to execute 
any necessary documents. Seconded by Councilmember Burke. 
 
AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Glockel 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Henderson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

10. Consider and act on the acceptance of Cigna proposal for City’s employee dental insurance 
 benefits for FY 2018-2019, and authorization for the City Manager to execute any necessary 
 documents. 
 
The City of Corinth solicited proposals for the City’s employee dental insurance benefits for the 2018-2019 
fiscal year.  Three qualified proposals for dental insurance benefits were received during the Request for 
Proposals (RFP) process which closed on May 31, 2018.  
 
After review and evaluation of specific benefits and proposed costs, our benefits consultant (IPS Advisors, 
LLP) initiated negotiations. After negotiations, the proposal from Cigna was the most advantageous option 
for dental insurance coverage. The proposal represents a decrease of 1.43% in average over the current rates 
(2017-2018 fiscal year). 
 
The rates are guaranteed for two (2) years (until September 30, 2020).  The proposed rates, funding changes, 
and expected census will represent an estimated total decrease of $4,000 for the 2018-19 fiscal year over 
the 2017-18 fiscal year budgeted rates. 
 
Full Time Employees Funding - The City will continue to fund 100% of the employee-only coverage 
premium cost.  The City contribution for the dependent cost will change from 75% to 70%. 
  
Part Time (0.5 FTE) Employees Funding - The City will continue to fund 50% of the employee-only 
coverage premium, and 0% for the dependent cost. 
 
Staff recommends acceptance of Cigna's proposal for City’s employee dental insurance benefits for FY 
2018-2019, and authorization for the City Manager to execute any necessary documents. 
 
MOTION made by Councilmember Johnson to accept Cigna proposal for City’s employee dental insurance 
benefits for FY 2018-2019, and authorization for the City Manager to execute any necessary documents. 
Seconded by Councilmember Glockel 

114



AYES:  Burke, Garber, Johnson, Glockel 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Henderson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

The purpose of this section is to allow each councilmember the opportunity to provide general 

updates and/or comments to fellow councilmembers, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future 

events. Also, in accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any 
Councilmember may direct that an item be added as a business item to any future agenda. 

 

Mayor Heidemann - On August 23rd we will have a retirement reception for Debra Walthall, Chief of 
police at the public safety building from 3:00 - 5:00 and encourage everyone to attend. 
 

 

There was no Closed Session during the Regular meeting.  
 

CLOSED SESSION 

The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any 
of the above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas 
Government Code. 
 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated 
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts 
with chapter 551. 
 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an 
open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations 
with a third person. 
 
Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, 
or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee. 
 
Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, 
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is 
conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive 
to a business prospect. 
 
After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City  
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its 
Attorney on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not. 
 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION 
ITEMS. 
 
ADJOURN: 

 

115



Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 7:58 P.M. 
 
AYES: All 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
 
Approved by Council on the    day of    , 2018.  
 
 
       
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

116



   
    CONSENT ITEM    7.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 09/06/2018  
Title: Settlement between the ATMOS Cities Steering Committee and ATMOS Energy Corp
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on a Resolution approving a negotiated settlement between the Atmos Steering Committee and
Atmos Energy Corp, Mid-Tex Division regarding the company's 2018 Rate Review Mechanism filings. 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The City, along with 171 other Mid-Texas cities served by Atmos Energy Corporation, Mid?Tex Division (“Atmos
Mid-Tex” or “Company”), is a member of the Atmos Cities Steering Committee (“ACSC”). In 2007, ACSC and
Atmos Mid-Tex settled a rate application filed by the Company pursuant to Section 104.301 of the Texas Utilities
Code for an interim rate adjustment commonly referred to as a GRIP filing (arising out of the Gas Reliability
Infrastructure Program legislation). That settlement created a substitute rate review process, referred to as Rate
Review Mechanism (“RRM”), as a substitute for future filings under the GRIP statute.

Since 2007, there have been several modifications to the original RRM Tariff. The most recent iteration of an RRM
Tariff was reflected in an ordinance adopted by ACSC members earlier this year. On or about April 1, 2018, the
Company filed a rate request pursuant to the RRM Tariff adopted by ACSC members. The Company claimed that
its cost-of-service in a test year ending December 31, 2017, entitled it to additional system-wide revenues of $42.0
million. Application of the standards set forth in ACSC’s RRM Tariff required Atmos to reduce its request to $27.4
million. After review of the consultants’ report, the Company offered to settle for a system-wide increase of $25.9
million. Following further negotiations, ACSC’s Executive Committee agreed to recommend a system-wide rate
increase of $24.9 million. That increase when allocated to ACSC members results in an increase of $17.8 million.
The Effective Date for new rates is October 1, 2018. ACSC members should take action approving the Resolution
before the end of September.

Atmos generated proof that the rate tariffs attached to the Resolution will generate $24.9 million in additional
revenues on a system-wide basis. That proof is attached as Attachment 1 to this Staff Report. ACSC consultants
have agreed that Atmos’ Proof of Revenues is accurate.

Given the fact that ACSC demanded that Atmos reflect reduced federal income taxes in its cost-of-service, as
reflected in the RRM Tariff adopted earlier this year, Atmos reduced its rates in March. The rate increase associated
with the Resolution is largely offset by the lowered federal income tax rates, such that out-of-pocket expense to
consumers should be roughly the same under new rates as what was experienced by consumers last winter. A bill
impact comparison is attached as Attachment 2.

SUMMARY OF ACSC’S OBJECTION TO THE UTILITIES CODE SECTION 104.301 GRIP PROCESS
ACSC strongly opposed the GRIP process because it constitutes piecemeal ratemaking by ignoring declining
expenses and increasing revenues while rewarding the Company for increasing capital investment on an annual
basis. The GRIP process does not allow any review of the reasonableness of capital investment and does not allow
cities to participate in the Railroad Commission’s review of annual GRIP filings or allow recovery of Cities’ rate
case expenses. The Railroad Commission undertakes a mere administrative review of GRIP filings (instead of a
full hearing) and rate increases go into effect without any material adjustments. In ACSC’s view, the GRIP process
unfairly raises customers’ rates without any regulatory oversight. In contrast, the RRM process has allowed for a
more comprehensive rate review and annual evaluation of expenses and revenues, as well as capital investment.

117



CONCLUSION
The Legislature’s GRIP process allowed gas utilities to receive annual rate increases
associated with capital investments. The RRM process has proven to result in a more efficient and less costly (both
from a consumer rate impact perspective and from a ratemaking perspective) than the GRIP process. Given Atmos
Mid-Tex’s claim that its historic cost of service should entitle it to recover $42 million in additional system-wide
revenues, the RRM settlement at $24.9 million reflects savings of $17.1 million. ACSC’s consultants produced a
report indicating that Atmos had justified increased revenues of at least $21.7 million. Settlement at $24.9 million
is fair and reasonable. The ACSC Executive Committee consisting of city employees of 18 ACSC members urges
all ACSC members to pass the Resolution before September 30, 2018. New rates become effective October 1, 2018.

 

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the Resolution approving the negotiated rate settlement as presented.   

Attachments
Model Staff Report 
Resolution 

118



1 

August 24, 2018 

MODEL STAFF REPORT 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY 

The City, along with 171 other Mid-Texas cities served by Atmos Energy Corporation, Mid-

Tex Division (“Atmos Mid-Tex” or “Company”), is a member of the Atmos Cities Steering 

Committee (“ACSC”).  In 2007, ACSC and Atmos Mid-Tex settled a rate application filed by the 

Company pursuant to Section 104.301 of the Texas Utilities Code for an interim rate adjustment 

commonly referred to as a GRIP filing (arising out of the Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program 

legislation).  That settlement created a substitute rate review process, referred to as Rate Review 

Mechanism (“RRM”), as a substitute for future filings under the GRIP statute. 

Since 2007, there have been several modifications to the original RRM Tariff.  The most 

recent iteration of an RRM Tariff was reflected in an ordinance adopted by ACSC members earlier 

this year.  On or about April 1, 2018, the Company filed a rate request pursuant to the RRM Tariff 

adopted by ACSC members.  The Company claimed that its cost-of-service in a test year ending 

December 31, 2017, entitled it to additional system-wide revenues of $42.0 million.  Application of 

the standards set forth in ACSC’s RRM Tariff required Atmos to reduce its request to $27.4 million.  

After review of the consultants’ report, the Company offered to settle for a system-wide increase of 

$25.9 million.  Following further negotiations, ACSC’s Executive Committee agreed to recommend 

a system-wide rate increase of $24.9 million.  That increase when allocated to ACSC members results 

in an increase of $17.8 million.  The Effective Date for new rates is October 1, 2018.  ACSC members 

should take action approving the Resolution before the end of September. 

119



2 

PROOF OF REVENUES 

Atmos generated proof that the rate tariffs attached to the Resolution will generate $24.9 

million in additional revenues on a system-wide basis.  That proof is attached as Attachment 1 to this 

Staff Report.  ACSC consultants have agreed that Atmos’ Proof of Revenues is accurate. 

BILL IMPACT 

Given the fact that ACSC demanded that Atmos reflect reduced federal income taxes in its 

cost-of-service, as reflected in the RRM Tariff adopted earlier this year, Atmos reduced its rates in 

March.  The rate increase associated with the Resolution is largely offset by the lowered federal 

income tax rates, such that out-of-pocket expense to consumers should be roughly the same under 

new rates as what was experienced by consumers last winter.  A bill impact comparison is attached 

as Attachment 2. 

SUMMARY OF ACSC’S OBJECTION TO THE UTILITIES CODE SECTION 104.301 

GRIP PROCESS 

ACSC strongly opposed the GRIP process because it constitutes piecemeal ratemaking by 

ignoring declining expenses and increasing revenues while rewarding the Company for increasing 

capital investment on an annual basis.  The GRIP process does not allow any review of the 

reasonableness of capital investment and does not allow cities to participate in the Railroad 

Commission’s review of annual GRIP filings or allow recovery of Cities’ rate case expenses.  The 

Railroad Commission undertakes a mere administrative review of GRIP filings (instead of a full 

hearing) and rate increases go into effect without any material adjustments.  In ACSC’s view, the 

GRIP process unfairly raises customers’ rates without any regulatory oversight.  In contrast, the RRM 

process has allowed for a more comprehensive rate review and annual evaluation of expenses and 

revenues, as well as capital investment. 

EXPLANATION OF “BE IT ORDAINED” PARAGRAPHS 

1. This section approves all findings in the Resolution. 

120



3 

2. This section adopts the RRM rate tariffs and finds the adoption of the new rates to be just, 

reasonable, and in the public interest.   

3. This section finds that existing rates are unreasonable.  Such finding is a necessary predicate 

to establishment of new rates.  The new tariffs will permit Atmos Mid-Tex to recover an 

additional $24.9 million on a system-wide basis.  Settling Cities will be responsible for $17.8 

million of the $24.9 million. 

4. This section approves an exhibit that establishes a benchmark for pensions and retiree medical 

benefits to be used in future rate cases or RRM filings. 

5. This section approves an exhibit to be used in future rate cases or RRM filings regarding 

recovery of regulatory liabilities, such as excess deferred income taxes. 

6. This section requires the Company to reimburse the City for expenses associated with review 

of the RRM filing, settlement discussions, and adoption of the Resolution approving new rate 

tariffs. 

7. This section repeals any resolution or ordinance that is inconsistent with the Resolution. 

8. This section finds that the meeting was conducted in compliance with the Texas Open 

Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551. 

9. This section is a savings clause, which provides that if any section is later found to be 

unconstitutional or invalid, that finding shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the remaining 

provisions of this Resolution.  This section further directs that the remaining provisions of the 

Resolution are to be interpreted as if the offending section or clause never existed. 

10. This section provides for an effective date upon passage. 

11. This section directs that a copy of the signed Resolution be sent to a representative of the 

Company and legal counsel for ACSC. 

121



4 

CONCLUSION 

The Legislature’s GRIP process allowed gas utilities to receive annual rate increases 

associated with capital investments.  The RRM process has proven to result in a more efficient and 

less costly (both from a consumer rate impact perspective and from a ratemaking perspective) than 

the GRIP process.  Given Atmos Mid-Tex’s claim that its historic cost of service should entitle it to 

recover $42 million in additional system-wide revenues, the RRM settlement at $24.9 million reflects 

savings of $17.1 million.  ACSC’s consultants produced a report indicating that Atmos had justified 

increased revenues of at least $21.7 million.  Settlement at $24.9 million is fair and reasonable.  The 

ACSC Executive Committee consisting of city employees of 18 ACSC members urges all ACSC 

members to pass the Resolution before September 30, 2018.  New rates become effective October 1, 

2018. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
2557/30/7718885 

122



1 

RESOLUTION NO.  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
       , TEXAS, APPROVING A 

NEGOTIATED SETTLEMENT BETWEEN THE ATMOS CITIES 
STEERING COMMITTEE (“ACSC”) AND ATMOS ENERGY 
CORP., MID-TEX DIVISION REGARDING THE COMPANY’S 
2018 RATE REVIEW MECHANISM FILINGS; DECLARING 
EXISTING RATES TO BE UNREASONABLE; ADOPTING 
TARIFFS THAT REFLECT RATE ADJUSTMENTS CONSISTENT 
WITH THE NEGOTIATED SETTLEMENT; FINDING THE 
RATES TO BE SET BY THE ATTACHED SETTLEMENT 
TARIFFS TO BE JUST AND REASONABLE AND IN THE PUBLIC 
INTEREST; APPROVING AN ATTACHED EXHIBIT 
ESTABLISHING A BENCHMARK FOR PENSIONS AND 
RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS; APPROVING AN ATTACHED 
EXHIBIT REGARDING AMORTIZATION OF REGULATORY 
LIABILITY; REQUIRING THE COMPANY TO REIMBURSE 
ACSC’S REASONABLE RATEMAKING EXPENSES; 
DETERMINING THAT THIS RESOLUTION WAS PASSED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE TEXAS 
OPEN MEETINGS ACT; ADOPTING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 
DECLARING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND REQUIRING 
DELIVERY OF THIS RESOLUTION TO THE COMPANY AND 
THE ACSC’S LEGAL COUNSEL. 

WHEREAS, the City of                               , Texas (“City”) is a gas 

utility customer of Atmos Energy Corp., Mid-Tex Division (“Atmos Mid-Tex” or “Company”), 

and a regulatory authority with an interest in the rates and charges of Atmos Mid-Tex; and 

WHEREAS, the City is a member of the Atmos Cities Steering Committee (“ACSC”), a 

coalition of similarly-situated cities served by Atmos Mid-Tex (“ACSC Cities”) that have joined 

together to facilitate the review of, and response to, natural gas issues affecting rates charged in 

the Atmos Mid-Tex service area; and  

WHEREAS, ACSC and the Company worked collaboratively to develop a new Rate 

Review Mechanism (“RRM”) tariff that allows for an expedited rate review process by ACSC 

Cities as a substitute to the Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program (“GRIP”) process instituted by 

18-09-06-09

CORINTH

Corinth

123



2 

the Legislature, and that will establish rates for the ACSC Cities based on the system-wide cost 

of serving the Atmos Mid-Tex Division; and  

WHEREAS, the RRM tariff was adopted by the City in a rate ordinance earlier this 

year; and  

WHEREAS, on about April 1, 2018, Atmos Mid-Tex filed its 2018 RRM rate request 

with ACSC Cities based on a test year ending December 31, 2017; and  

WHEREAS, ACSC coordinated its review of the Atmos Mid-Tex 2018 RRM filing 

through its Executive Committee, assisted by ACSC’s attorneys and consultants, to resolve 

issues identified in the Company’s RRM filing; and  

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee, as well as ACSC’s counsel and consultants, 

recommend that ACSC Cities approve an increase in base rates for Atmos Mid-Tex of $24.9 

million on a system-wide basis ($17.8 million of which is applicable to ACSC members); and 

WHEREAS, the attached tariffs (Exhibit A) implementing new rates are consistent with 

the recommendation of the ACSC Executive Committee, are agreed to by the Company, and are 

just, reasonable, and in the public interest; and  

WHEREAS, the Exhibit A rate tariffs incorporate the federal income tax rates that 

became effective January 1, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, the settlement agreement sets a new benchmark for pensions and retiree 

medical benefits (Exhibit B) and 

WHEREAS, the settlement agreement establishes an amortization schedule for regulatory 

liability (Exhibit C); and 

WHEREAS, the RRM Tariff contemplates reimbursement of ACSC’s reasonable 

expenses associated with RRM applications;  

124



3 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF                               , TEXAS: 

Section 1.  That the findings set forth in this Resolution are hereby in all things approved. 

Section 2.  That the City Council finds that the settled amount of an increase in revenues 

of $24.9 million on a system-wide basis represents a comprehensive settlement of gas utility rate 

issues affecting the rates, operations, and services offered by Atmos Mid-Tex within the 

municipal limits arising from Atmos Mid-Tex’s 2018 RRM filing, is in the public interest, and is 

consistent with the City’s authority under Section 103.001 of the Texas Utilities Code. 

Section 3.  That the existing rates for natural gas service provided by Atmos Mid-Tex are 

unreasonable.  The new tariffs attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A, are just and 

reasonable, and are designed to allow Atmos Mid-Tex to recover annually an additional $24.9 

million in revenue on a system-wide basis over the amount allowed under currently approved 

rates.  Such tariffs are hereby adopted. 

Section 4.  That the ratemaking treatment for pensions and retiree medical benefits in 

Atmos Mid-Tex’s next RRM filing shall be as set forth on Exhibit B, attached hereto and 

incorporated herein.  

Section 5.  That amortization of regulatory liability shall be consistent with the schedule 

found in attached Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein.   

Section 6.  That Atmos Mid-Tex shall reimburse the reasonable ratemaking expenses of 

the ACSC in processing the Company’s 2018 RRM filing. 

Section 7.  That to the extent any resolution or ordinance previously adopted by the 

Council is inconsistent with this Resolution, it is hereby repealed.  

CORINTH

125



4 

Section 8.  That the meeting at which this Resolution was approved was in all things 

conducted in strict compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 551. 

Section 9.  That if any one or more sections or clauses of this Resolution is adjudged to 

be unconstitutional or invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the remaining 

provisions of this Resolution, and the remaining provisions of the Resolution shall be interpreted 

as if the offending section or clause never existed. 

Section 10.  That consistent with the City Ordinance that established the RRM process, 

this Resolution shall become effective from and after its passage with rates authorized by 

attached tariffs to be effective for bills rendered on or after October 1, 2018. 

Section 11.  That a copy of this Resolution shall be sent to Atmos Mid-Tex, care of Chris 

Felan, Vice President of Rates and Regulatory Affairs Mid-Tex Division, Atmos Energy 

Corporation, 5420 LJB Freeway, Suite 1862, Dallas, Texas 75240, and to Geoffrey Gay, General 

Counsel to ACSC, at Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, P.C., 816 Congress Avenue, 

Suite 1900, Austin, Texas  78701. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this    day of  , 2018. 

Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Secretary City Attorney 

2557/30/7717932 

126



Exhibit A 
Rate Tariffs Effective 

October 1, 2018

127



MID-TEX DIVISION

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RRC Tariff No:

RATE SCHEDULE: R - RESIDENTIAL SALES

APPLICABLE TO:
ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2018 PAGE: 12

Application
Applicable to Residential Customers for all natural gas provided at one Point of Delivery and measured
through one meter.

Type of Service
Where service of the type desired by Customer is not already available at the Point of Delivery, additional
charges and special contract arrangements between Company and Customer may be required prior to
service being furnished.

Monthly Rate
Customer's monthly bill will be calculated by adding the following Customer and Ccf charges to the
amounts due under the riders listed below:

Charge Amount

Customer Charge per Bill $18.85 per month

Rider CEE Surcharge $ 0.03 per month'

Total Customer Charge $18.88 per month

Commodity Charge - All Ccf $0.14846 per Ccf

Gas Cost Recovery: Pius an amount for gas costs and upstream transportation costs calculated
in accordance with Part (a) and Part (b), respectively, of Rider OCR.

Weather Normalization Adjustment: Pius or Minus an amount for weather normalization
calculated in accordance with Rider WNA.

Franchise Fee Adjustment: Plus an amount for franchise fees calculated in accordance with Rider
FF. Rider FF is only applicable to customers inside the corporate limits of any incorporated
municipality.

Tax Adjustment: Plus an amount for tax calculated in accordance with Rider TAX.

Surcharges: Plus an amount for surcharges calculated in accordance with the applicable rider(s).

Agreement
An Agreement for Gas Service may be required.

Notice

Service hereunder and the rates for services provided are subject to the orders of regulatory bodies
having jurisdiction and to the Company's Tariff for Gas Service.

^Reference Rider CEE - Conservation and Energy Efficiency as approved in GUD 10170. Surcharge billing effective July 1, 2018.
128



MID-TEX DIVISION

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RRC Tariff No:

RATE SCHEDULE: C - COMMERCIAL SALES

APPLICABLE TO:
ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2018 PAGE: 13

Application
Applicable to Commercial Customers for all natural gas provided at one Point of Delivery and measured
through one meter and to Industrial Customers with an average annual usage of less than 30,000 Ccf.

Type of Service
Where service of the type desired by Customer is not already available at the Point of Delivery, additional
charges and special contract arrangements between Company and Customer may be required prior to
service being furnished.

Monthly Rate
Customer's monthly bill will be calculated by adding the following Customer and Ccf charges to the
amounts due under the riders listed below:

Charge Amount

Customer Charge per Bill $ 43.50 per month

Rider CEE Surcharge $ (0.03) per month'

Total Customer Charge $ 43.47 per month

Commodity Charge - All Ccf $ 0.09165 per Ccf

Gas Cost Recovery: Plus an amount for gas costs and upstream transportation costs calculated
in accordance with Part (a) and Part (b), respectively, of Rider GCR.

Weather Normalization Adjustment: Plus or Minus an amount for weather normalization
calculated in accordance with Rider WNA.

Franchise Fee Adjustment: Plus an amount for franchise fees calculated in accordance with Rider
FF. Rider FF is only applicable to customers inside the corporate limits of any incorporated
municipality.

Tax Adjustment: Plus an amount for tax calculated in accordance with Rider TAX.

Surcharges: Plus an amount for surcharges calculated in accordance with the applicable rider(s).

Agreement
An Agreement for Gas Service may be required.

Notice

Service hereunder and the rates for services provided are subject to the orders of regulatory bodies
having jurisdiction and to the Company's Tariff for Gas Service.

' Reference Rider CEE - Conservation and Energy Efficiency as approved in GUD 10170. Surcharge billing effective July 1, 2018.
129



MID-TEX DIVISION

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RRC Tariff No:

RATE SCHEDULE: 1 - INDUSTRIAL SALES

APPLICABLE TO:
ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2018 PAGE: 14

Application
Applicable to Industrial Customers with a maximum daily usage (MDU) of less than 3,500 MMBtu per day
for all natural gas provided at one Point of Delivery and measured through one meter. Service for
Industrial Customers with an MDU equal to or greater than 3,500 MMBtu per day will be provided at
Company's sole option and will require special contract arrangements between Company and Customer.

Type of Service
Where service of the type desired by Customer is not already available at the Point of Delivery, additional
charges and special contract arrangements between Company and Customer may be required prior to
service being furnished.

Monthly Rate
Customer's monthly bill will be calculated by adding the following Customer and MMBtu charges to the
amounts due under the riders listed below:

Charge Amount

Customer Charge per Meter $ 784.00 per month

First 0 MMBtu to 1,500 MMBtu $ 0.3312 per MMBtu

Next 3,500 MMBtu $ 0.2425 per MMBtu

All MMBtu over 5,000 MMBtu $ 0.0520 per MMBtu

Gas Cost Recovery: Plus an amount for gas costs and upstream transportation costs calculated
in accordance with Part (a) and Part (b), respectively, of Rider OCR.

Franchise Fee Adjustment: Plus an amount for franchise fees calculated in accordance with Rider
FF. Rider FF is only applicable to customers inside the corporate limits of any incorporated
municipality.

Tax Adjustment: Plus an amount for tax calculated in accordance with Rider TAX.

Surcharges: Plus an amount for surcharges calculated in accordance with the applicable rider(s).

Curtailment Overpull Fee
Upon notification by Company of an event of curtailment or interruption of Customer's deliveries.
Customer will, for each MMBtu delivered in excess of the stated level of curtailment or interruption, pay
Company 200% of the midpoint price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Daily published for the
applicable Gas Day in the table entitled "Daily Price Survey."

Replacement Index
In the event the "midpoint" or "common" price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Dally in the table
entitled "Daily Price Survey" is no longer published, Company will calculate the applicable imbalance fees
utilizing a daily price index recognized as authoritative by the natural gas industry and most closely
approximating the applicable index.

130



MID-TEX DIVISION

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RRC Tariff No:

RATE SCHEDULE: 1 - INDUSTRIAL SALES

APPLICABLE TO:
ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2018 PAGE: 15

Agreement
An Agreement for Gas Service may be required.

Notice

Service hereunder and the rates for services provided are subject to the orders of regulatory bodies
having jurisdiction and to the Company's Tariff for Gas Service.

Special Conditions
In order to receive service under Rate I, Customer must have the type of meter required by Company.
Customer must pay Company all costs associated with the acquisition and installation of the meter.

131



MID-TEX DIVISION

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RRC Tariff No:

RATE SCHEDULE: 1 - INDUSTRIAL SALES

APPLICABLE TO:
ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2018 PAGE: 16

Exhibit A

The rates were effective for the following Cities on 3/15/2018:

ABILENE

ADDISON

ALBANY

ALLEN

ALVARADO

ANGUS

ANNA

ARGYLE

ARLINGTON

AUBREY

AZLE

BEDFORD

BELLMEAD

BENBROOK

BEVERLY HILLS

BLOSSOM

BLUE RIDGE

BOWIE

BOYD

BRIDGEPORT

BROWNWOOD

BUFFALO

BURKBURNETT

BURLESON

CADDO MILLS

CANTON

CARROLLTON

CEDAR HILL

CELESTE

CELINA

CENTERVILLE

CISCO

CLARKSVILLE

CLEBURNE

CLYDE

COLLEGE STATION

COLLEYVILLE

COLORADO CITY

COMANCHE

COOLIDGE

COPPELL

CORINTH

CRANDALL

CROWLEY

DALWORTHINGTON GARDENS

DENISON

DENTON

DESOTO

DRAPER AKA CORRAL CITY

DUNCANVILLE

EASTLAND

EDGECLIFF VILLAGE

EMORY

ENNIS

EULESS

EVERMAN

FAIRVIEW

FARMERS BRANCH

FARMERSVILLE

FATE

FLOWER MOUND

FOREST HILL

FORNEY

FORT WORTH

FRISCO

FROST

GAINSVILLE

GARLAND

GARRETT

GRAND PARAIRIE

GRAPEVINE

GUNTER

HALTOM CITY

HARKER HEIGHTS

HASKELL

HASLET

HEWITT

HIGHLAND PARK

HIGHLAND VILLAGE

HONEY GROVE

HURST

IOWA PARK

IRVING

JUSTIN

KAUFMAN

KEENE

KELLER

KEMP

KENNEDALE

KERRVILLE

KILLEEN

KRUM

LAKE WORTH

LAKESIDE

LEWISVILLE

LINCOLN PARK (ANNEXED
WITH LITTLE ELM)
LITTLE ELM

LORENA

MADISONVILLE

MALAKOFF

MANSFIELD

MCKINNEY

MELISSA

MESQUITE

MIDLOTHIAN

MURPHY

NEWARK

NOCONA

NORTH RICHLAND HILLS

NORTH LAKE

OAK LEAF

OVILLA

PALESTINE

PANTEGO

PARIS

PARKER

PECAN HILL

PETROLIA

PLANO

PONDER

POTTSBORO

PROSPER

QUITMAN

RED OAK

RENO (PARKER COUNTY)
RHOME

RICHARDSON

RICHLAND

RICHLAND HILLS

RIVER OAKS

ROANOKE

ROBINSON

ROCKWALL

ROSCOE

ROWLETT

132



MID-TEX DIVISION

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RRC Tariff No:

RATE SCHEDULE: 1 - INDUSTRIAL SALES

APPLICABLE TO:
ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2018 PAGE: 17

Cities with Rate Effective 3/15/2018 (Continued)

ROYSE CITY

SACHSE

SAG IN AW

SANSOM PARK

SEAGOVILLE

SHERMAN

SNYDER

SOUTHLAKE

SPRINGTOWN

STAMFORD

STEPHENVILLE

SULPHUR SPRINGS

SWEETWATER

TEMPLE

TERRELL

THE COLONY

TROPHY CLUB

TYLER

UNIVERSITY PARK

VENUS

VERNON

WACO

The rates were effective for the following Cities on 4/01/2018:

ABBOTT

ALBA

ALMA

ALVORD

ANNONA

ANSON

ARCHER CITY

ATHENS

AURORA

AUSTIN

AVERY

BAIRD

BALCH SPRINGS

BALLINGER

BANDERA

BANGS

BARDWELL

BARRY

BARTLETT

BARTONVILLE

BELLEVUE

BELLS

BELTON

BENJAMIN

BERTRAM

BLACKWELL

BLANKET

BLOOMING GROVE

BLUE MOUND

BLUM

BOGATA

BONHAM

BREMOND

BRONTE

BROWNSBORO

BRUCEVILLE-EDDY

BRYAN

BUCKHOLTS

BUFFALO GAP

BURNET

BYERS

CALDWELL

CALVERT

CAMERON

CAMPBELL

CARBON

CASHION COMMUNITY

CEDAR PARK

CHANDLER

CHICO

CHILDRESS

CHILLICOTHE

CLIFTON

COCKRELL HILL

COLEMAN

COLLINSVILLE

COMMERCE

COMO

COOPER

COPPER CANYON

COPPERAS COVE

CORSICANA

COVINGTON

COYOTE FLATS

CRAWFORD

CROSS ROADS

CUMBY

DAWSON

DECATUR

DELEON

WATAUGA

WAXAHACHIE

WESTLAKE

WESTOVER HILLS

WHITE SETTLEMENT

WHITESBORO

WICHITA FALLS

WOODWAY

WYLIE

DEPORT

DETROIT

DODD CITY

DOUBLE OAK

DUBLIN

EARLY

ECTOR

EDOM

ELECTRA

EMHOUSE

EUSTACE

EVANT

FAIRFIELD

FERRIS

FRANKLIN

FRANKSTON

FREDERICKSBURG

GATESVILLE

GEORGETOWN

GLEN ROSE

GLENN HEIGHTS

GODLEY

GOLDTHWAITE

GOODLOW

GORDON

GOREE

GORMAN

GRANBURY

GRAND VIEW

GRANGER

GREENVILLE

GROESBECK
GUSTINE

HAMLIN

HAMILTON

133



MID-TEX DIVISION

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RRC Tariff No:

RATE SCHEDULE: 1 - INDUSTRIAL SALES

APPLICABLE TO:
ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2018 PAGE: 18

Cities with Rate Effective 4/01/2018 (Continued)

HAWLEY

HEARNE

HEATH

HEBRON

HENRIETTA

HICKORY CREEK

HICO

HILLSBORO

HOLLAND

HOLLIDAY

HOWE

HUBBARD

HUTCHINS

HUTTO

IMPACT

IREDELL

ITALY

ITASCA

JEWETT

JOSEPHINE

JOSHUA

KERENS

KNOLLWOOD

KNOX CITY

KOSSE

KURTEN

LACY-LAKEVIEW

LADONIA

LAKE DALLAS

LAKEPORT

LAMPASAS

LANCASTER

LAVON

LAWN

LEANDER

LEONA

LEONARD

LEXINGTON

LINDSAY

LIPAN

LITTLE RIVER ACADEMY

LLANO

LOMETA

LONE OAK

LONGVIEW

LORAINE

LOTT

LUEDERS

MABANK

MALONE

MANOR

MARBLE FALLS

MARLIN

MART

MAYPEARL

MCGREGOR

MCLENDON-CHISHOLM

MEGARGEL

MERIDIAN

MERKEL

MEXIA

MIDWAY

MILES

MILFORD

MILLSAP

MOBILE CITY

MOODY

MORAN

MORGAN

MUENSTER

MUNDAY

MURCHISON

NEVADA

NEW CHAPEL HILL

NEWCASTLE

NOLANVILLE

NORMANGEE

NOVICE

OAK POINT

OAKWOOD

O'BRIEN CO-OP GIN

OGLESBY

OLNEY

PALMER

PARADISE

PECAN GAP

PENELOPE

PFLUGERVILLE

PILOT POINT

PLEASANT VALLEY

POINT

POST OAK BEND

POWELL

POYNOR

PRINCETON

PUTNAM

QUANAH

QUINLAN

RANGER

RAVENNA

RENO (LAMAR COUNTY)
RETREAT

RICE

RIESEL

RIO VISTA

ROBERT LEE

ROBY

ROCHESTER

ROCKDALE

ROGERS

ROSEBUD

ROSS

ROTAN

ROUND ROCK

ROXTON

RULE

RUNAWAY BAY

SADLER

SAINT JO

SAN ANGELO

SAN SABA

SANCTUARY

SANGER

SANTA ANNA

SAVOY

SCURRY

SEYMOUR

SHADY SHORES

SOMERVILLE

SOUTH MOUNTAIN

SOUTHMAYD

STAR HARBOR

STOCKTON BEND

STRAWN

STREETMAN

SUN VALLEY

SUNNYVALE

TALTY

TAYLOR

TEAGUE

TEHUACANA

THORNDALE

THORNTON

THRALL

THROCKMORTON

TIOGA

TOCO

134



MID-TEX DIVISION

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RRC Tariff No:

RATE SCHEDULE: 1 - INDUSTRIAL SALES

APPLICABLE TO:
ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2018 PAGE: 19

Cities with Rate Effective 4/01/2018 (Continued)

TOM BEAN

TRENT

TRENTON

TRINIDAD

TROY

TUSGOLA

TYE

VALLEY MILLS

VALLEY VIEW

VAN ALSTYNE

WALNUT SPRINGS

WEINERT

WEST

WESTWORTH VILLAGE

WHITEHOUSE

WHITEWRIGHT

WHITNEY

WILMER

WINDOM

WINTERS

WIXON VALLEY

WOLFE CITY

WORTHAM

YANTIS

135



MID-TEX DIVISION

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RRC Tariff No:

RATE SCHEDULE: T - TRANSPORTATION

APPLICABLE TO:
ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2018 PAGE: 16

Application
Applicable, in the event that Company has entered into a Transportation Agreement, to a customer
directly connected to the Atmos Energy Corp., Mid-Tex Division Distribution System (Customer) for the
transportation of all natural gas supplied by Customer or Customer's agent at one Point of Delivery for
use in Customer's facility.

Type of Service
Where service of the type desired by Customer is not already available at the Point of Delivery, additional
charges and special contract arrangements between Company and Customer may be required prior to
service being furnished.

Monthly Rate
Customer's bill will be calculated by adding the following Customer and MMBtu charges to the amounts
and quantities due under the riders listed below:

Charge Amount

Customer Charge per Meter $ 784.00 per month

First 0 MMBtu to 1,500 MMBtu $0.3312 per MMBtu

Next 3,500 MMBtu $ 0.2425 per MMBtu

All MMBtu over 5,000 MMBtu $ 0.0520 per MMBtu

Upstream Transportation Cost Recovery: Plus an amount for upstream transportation costs in
accordance with Part (b) of Rider OCR.

Retention Adjustment: Plus a quantity of gas as calculated in accordance with Rider RA.

Franchise Fee Adjustment: Plus an amount for franchise fees calculated in accordance with Rider
FF. Rider FF is only applicable to customers inside the corporate limits of any incorporated
municipality.

Tax Adjustment: Plus an amount for tax calculated in accordance with Rider TAX.

Surcharges: Plus an amount for surcharges calculated in accordance with the applicable rider(s).

Imbalance Fees

All fees charged to Customer under this Rate Schedule will be charged based on the quantities
determined under the applicable Transportation Agreement and quantities will not be aggregated for any
Customer with multiple Transportation Agreements for the purposes of such fees.

Monthly Imbalance Fees
Customer shall pay Company the greater of (i) $0.10 per MMBtu, or (ii) 150% of the difference per MMBtu
between the highest and lowest "midpoint" price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Daily in the table
entitled "Daily Price Survey" during such month, for the MMBtu of Customer's monthly Cumulative
Imbalance, as defined in the applicable Transportation Agreement, at the end of each month that exceeds
10% of Customer's receipt quantities for the month.

136



MID-TEX DIVISION RRC Tariff No:

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RATE SCHEDULE: T - TRANSPORTATION

APPLICABLE TO:
ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2018 PAGE: 17

Curtailment Overpull Fee
Upon notification by Company of an event of curtailment or interruption of Customer's deliveries,
Customer will, for each MMBtu delivered in excess of the stated level of curtailment or interruption, pay
Company 200% of the midpoint price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Daily published for the
applicable Gas Day in the table entitled "Daily Price Survey."

Replacement Index
In the event the "midpoint" or "common" price for the Katy point listed in Platts Gas Dally in the table
entitled "Daily Price Survey" is no longer published. Company will calculate the applicable imbalance fees
utilizing a daily price index recognized as authoritative by the natural gas industry and most closely
approximating the applicable index.

Agreement
A transportation agreement is required.

Notice

Service hereunder and the rates for services provided are subjeot to the orders of regulatory bodies
having jurisdiction and to the Company's Tariff for Gas Service.

Special Conditions
In order to receive service under Rate T, customer must have the type of meter required by Company.
Customer must pay Company all costs associated with the acquisition and installation of the meter.

137



MID-TEX DIVISION

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RRC Tariff No:

RATE SCHEDULE: T - TRANSPORTATION

APPLICABLE TO:
ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2018 PAGE: 18

Exhibit A

The rates were effective for the following Cities on 3/15/2018:

ABILENE

ADDISON

ALBANY

ALLEN

ALVARADO

ANGUS

ANNA

ARGYLE

ARLINGTON

AUBREY

AZLE

BEDFORD

BELLMEAD

BENBROOK

BEVERLY HILLS

BLOSSOM

BLUE RIDGE

BOWIE

BOYD

BRIDGEPORT

BROWN WOOD

BUFFALO

BURKBURNETT

BURLESON

CADDO MILLS

CANTON

CARROLLTON

CEDAR HILL

CELESTE

CELINA

CENTERVILLE

CISCO

CLARKSVILLE

CLEBURNE

CLYDE

COLLEGE STATION

COLLEYVILLE

COLORADO CITY

COMANCHE

COOLIDGE

COPPELL

CORINTH

CRANDALL

CROWLEY

DALWORTHINGTON GARDENS

DENISON

DENTON

DESOTO

DRAPER AKA CORRAL CITY

DUNCANVILLE

EASTLAND

EDGECLIFF VILLAGE

EMORY

ENNIS

EULESS

EVERMAN

FAIRVIEW

FARMERS BRANCH

FARMERSVILLE

FATE

FLOWER MOUND

FOREST HILL

FORNEY

FORT WORTH

FRISCO

FROST

GAINSVILLE

GARLAND

GARRETT

GRAND PARAIRIE

GRAPEVINE

GUNTER

HALTOM CITY

HARKER HEIGHTS

HASKELL

HASLET

HEWITT

HIGHLAND PARK

HIGHLAND VILLAGE

HONEY GROVE

HURST

IOWA PARK

IRVING

JUSTIN

KAUFMAN

KEENE

KELLER

KEMP

KENNEDALE

KERRVILLE

KILLEEN

KRUM

LAKE WORTH

LAKESIDE

LEWISVILLE

LINCOLN PARK (ANNEXED
WITH LITTLE ELM)
LITTLE ELM

LORENA

MADISONVILLE

MALAKOFF

MANSFIELD

MCKINNEY

MELISSA

MESQUITE

MIDLOTHIAN

MURPHY

NEWARK

NOCONA

NORTH RICHLAND HILLS

NORTHLAKE

OAK LEAF

OVILLA

PALESTINE

PANTEGO

PARIS

PARKER

PECAN HILL

PETROLIA

PLANO

PONDER

POTTSBORO

PROSPER

QUITMAN

RED OAK

RENO (PARKER COUNTY)
RHOME

RICHARDSON

RICHLAND

RICHLAND HILLS

RIVER OAKS

ROANOKE

ROBINSON

ROCKWALL

ROSCOE

ROWLETT

138



MID-TEX DIVISION

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RRC Tariff No:

RATE SCHEDULE: T - TRANSPORTATION

APPLICABLE TO:
ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2018 PAGE: 19

Cities with Rate Effective 3/15/2018 (Continued)

ROYSE CITY

SACHSE

SAG! N AW

SANSOM PARK

SEAGOVILLE

SHERMAN

SNYDER

SOUTHLAKE

SPRINGTOWN

STAMFORD

STEPHENVILLE

SULPHUR SPRINGS

SWEETWATER

TEMPLE

TERRELL

THE COLONY

TROPHY CLUB

TYLER

UNIVERSITY PARK

VENUS

VERNON

WACO

The rates were effective for the following Cities on 4/01/2018:

ABBOTT

ALBA

ALMA

ALVORD

ANNONA

ANSON

ARCHER CITY

ATHENS

AURORA

AUSTIN

AVERY

BAIRD

BALCH SPRINGS

BALLINGER

BANDERA

BANGS

BARDWELL

BARRY

BARTLETT

BARTONVILLE

BELLEVUE

BELLS

BELTON

BENJAMIN

BERTRAM

BLACKWELL

BLANKET

BLOOMING GROVE

BLUE MOUND

BLUM

BOGATA

BONHAM

BREMOND

BRONTE

BROWNSBORO

BRUCEVILLE-EDDY

BRYAN

BUCKHOLTS

BUFFALO GAP

BURNET

BYERS

CALDWELL

CALVERT

CAMERON

CAMPBELL

CARBON

CASHION COMMUNITY

CEDAR PARK

CHANDLER

CHICO

CHILDRESS

CHILLICOTHE

CLIFTON

COCKRELL HILL

COLEMAN

COLLINSVILLE

COMMERCE

COMO

COOPER

COPPER CANYON

COPPERAS COVE

CORSICANA

COVINGTON

COYOTE FLATS

CRAWFORD

CROSS ROADS

CUMBY

DAWSON

DECATUR

DELEON

WATAUGA

WAXAHACHIE

WESTLAKE

WESTOVER HILLS

WHITE SETTLEMENT

WHITESBORO

WICHITA FALLS

WOODWAY

WYLIE

DEPORT

DETROIT

DODD CITY

DOUBLE OAK

DUBLIN

EARLY

ECTOR

EDOM

ELECTRA

EMHOUSE

EUSTACE

EVANT

FAIRFIELD

FERRIS

FRANKLIN

FRANKSTON

FREDERICKSBURG

GATESVILLE

GEORGETOWN

GLEN ROSE

GLENN HEIGHTS

GODLEY

GOLDTHWAITE

GOODLOW

GORDON

GOREE

GORMAN

GRANBURY

GRANDVIEW

GRANGER

GREENVILLE

GROESBECK

GUSTINE

HAMLIN

HAMILTON

139



MID-TEX DIVISION

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RRC Tariff No:

RATE SCHEDULE: T - TRANSPORTATION

APPLICABLE TO:
ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2018 PAGE: 20

Cities with Rate Effective 4/01/2018 (Continued)

HAWLEY

HEARNE

HEATH

HEBRON

HENRIETTA

HICKORY GREEK

HICO

HILLSBORO

HOLLAND

HOLLIDAY

HOWE

HUBBARD

HUTCHINS

HUTTO

IMPACT

IREDELL

ITALY

ITASCA

JEWETT

JOSEPHINE

JOSHUA

KERENS

KNOLLWOOD

KNOX CITY

KOSSE

KURTEN

LACY-LAKEVIEW

LADONIA

LAKE DALLAS

LAKEPORT

LAMPASAS

LANCASTER

LAVON

LAWN

LEANDER

LEONA

LEONARD

LEXINGTON

LINDSAY

LIPAN

LITTLE RIVER ACADEMY

LLANO

LOMETA

LONE OAK

LONGVIEW

LORAINE

LOTT

LUEDERS

MABANK

MALONE

MANOR

MARBLE FALLS

MARLIN

MART

MAYPEARL

MCGREGOR

MCLENDON-CHISHOLM

MEGARGEL

MERIDIAN

MERKEL

MEXIA

MIDWAY

MILES

MILFORD

MILLSAP

MOBILE CITY

MOODY

MORAN

MORGAN

MUENSTER

MUNDAY

MURCHISON

NEVADA

NEW CHAPEL HILL

NEWCASTLE

NOLANVILLE

NORMANGEE

NOVICE

OAK POINT

OAKWOOD

O'BRIEN CO-OP GIN

OGLESBY

OLNEY

PALMER

PARADISE

PECAN GAP

PENELOPE

PFLUGERVILLE

PILOT POINT

PLEASANT VALLEY

POINT

POST OAK BEND

POWELL

POYNOR

PRINCETON

PUTNAM

QUANAH

QUINLAN

RANGER

RAVENNA

RENO (LAMAR COUNTY)
RETREAT

RICE

RIESEL

RIO VISTA

ROBERT LEE

ROBY

ROCHESTER

ROCKDALE

ROGERS

ROSEBUD

ROSS

ROTAN

ROUND ROCK

ROXTON

RULE

RUNAWAY BAY

SADLER

SAINT JO

SAN ANGELO

SAN SABA

SANCTUARY

SANGER

SANTA ANNA

SAVOY

SCURRY

SEYMOUR

SHADY SHORES

SOMERVILLE

SOUTH MOUNTAIN

SOUTHMAYD

STAR HARBOR

STOCKTON BEND

STRAWN

STREETMAN

SUN VALLEY

SUNNYVALE

TALTY

TAYLOR

TEAGUE

TEHUACANA

THORNDALE

THORNTON

THRALL

THROCKMORTON

TIOGA

TOCO

140



MID-TEX DIVISION

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RRC Tariff No:

RATE SCHEDULE: T - TRANSPORTATION

APPLICABLE TO:
ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION EXCEPT THE CITY OF

DALLAS AND UNINCORPORATED AREAS

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 10/01/2018 PAGE: 21

Cities with Rate Effective 4/01/2018 (Continued)

TOM BEAN

TRENT

TRENTON

TRINIDAD

TROY

TUSGOLA

TYE

VALLEY MILLS

VALLEY VIEW

VAN ALSTYNE

WALNUT SPRINGS

WEINERT

WEST

WESTWORTH VILLAGE

WHITEHOUSE

WHITEWRIGHT

WHITNEY

WILMER

WINDOM

WINTERS

WIXON VALLEY

WOLFE CITY

WORTHAM

YANTIS

141



MID-TEX DIVISION

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RIDER: WNA - WEATHER NORMALIZATION ADJUSTMENT

APPLICABLE TO: ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION UNDER THE RRM TARIFF

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 11/01/2018 PAGE:

Provisions for Adjustment

The Commodity Charge per Ccf (100 cubic feet) for gas service set forth in any Rate Schedules utilized
by the cities of the Mid-Tex Division service area for determining normalized winter period revenues shall
be adjusted by an amount hereinafter described, which amount is referred to as the "Weather
Normalization Adjustment." The Weather Normalization Adjustment shall apply to all temperature
sensitive residential and commercial bills based on meters read during the revenue months of November
through April. The five regional weather stations are Abilene, Austin, Dallas, Waco, and Wichita Falls.

Computation of Weather Normalization Adjustment

The Weather Normalization Adjustment Factor shall be computed to the nearest one-hundredth cent
per Ccf by the following formula:

WNAF

Where

I

WNAFI

Rj

HSFj

NDD

ADD

Blj

(HSFi (NDD-ADD))
Ri

(BLi (HSFj X ADD) )

any particular Rate Schedule or billing classification within any such
particular Rate Schedule that contains more than one billing classification

Weather Normalization Adjustment Factor for the i^*^ rate schedule or
classification expressed in cents per Ccf

Commodity Charge rate of temperature sensitive sales for the i^^ schedule or
classification.

heat sensitive factor for the i^*^ schedule or classification divided by the
average bill count in that class

billing cycle normal heating degree days calculated as the simple ten-year
average of actual heating degree days.

billing cycle actual heating degree days.

base load sales for the i^l^ schedule or classification divided by the average
bill count in that class

The Weather Normalization Adjustment for the jth customer in ith rate schedule is computed as:

WNAi= WNAFi X qy

Where qy is the relevant sales quantity for the jth customer in ith rate schedule.

142



MID-TEX DIVISION

ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION

RIDER: WNA-WEATHER NORMALIZATION ADJUSTMENT

APPLICABLE TO: ALL CUSTOMERS IN THE MID-TEX DIVISION UNDER THE RRM TARIFF

EFFECTIVE DATE: Bills Rendered on or after 11/01/2018 PAGE:

Base Use/Heat Use Factors

Residential Commercial

Weather Station

Abilene

Base use

Ccf

9.77

Heat use

Ccf/HDD

0.1201

Base use

Ccf

99.33

Heat use

Ccf/HDD

0.5737

Austin 10.38 0.1493 201.46 0.8942

Dallas 13.17 0.2062 183.71 1.0046

Waco 9.26 0.1323 124.57 0.6398

Wichita

Falls

11.62 0.1278 114.97 0.5226

Weather Normalization Adjustment (WNA^ Report

On or before June 1 of each year, the company posts on its website at atmosenergy.com/mtx-wna, in
Excel format, a Weather Normalization Adjustment (WNA) Report to show how the company calculated
Its WNAs factor during the preceding winter season. Additionally, on or before June 1 of each year, the
company files one hard copy and an Excel version of the WNA Report with the Railroad Commission of
Texas' Gas Services Division, addressed to the Director of that Division.

143



Exhibit B 
Pensions and Retiree Medical Benefits 

144



E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 B
e
n
e
f
i
t

P
i
a
n

 

(
e
)

 

A
T
M
O
S
 E
N
E
R
G
Y
 C
O
R
P
.
,
 M
I
D
-
T
E
X
 D
I
V
I
S
I
O
N

P
E
N
S
I
O
N
S
 A
N
D
 R
E
T
I
R
E
E
 M
E
D
I
C
A
L
 B
E
N
E
F
I
T
S
 F
O
R
 C
I
T
I
E
S
 A
P
P
R
O
V
A
L

T
E
S
T
 Y
E
A
R
 E
N
D
I
N
G
 D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 3
1
,
 2
0
1
7

S
h
a
r
e
d
 S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s

M
i
d
-
T
e
x
 D
i
r
e
c
t

L
i
n
e

N
o
.

De
sc

ri
pt

io
n

P
e
n
s
i
o
n

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 P
l
a
n

P
o
s
t
-

E
m
p
l
o
y
m
e
n
t

B
e
n
e
f
i
t
 P
l
a
n

P
e
n
s
i
o
n

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 P
i
a
n

S
u
p
p
i
e
m
e
n
t
a
l

P
o
s
t
-

E
m
p
l
o
y
m
e
n
t

B
e
n
e
f
i
t
 P
i
a
n

A
d
j
u
s
t
m
e
n
t

T
o
t
a
i

(
a
)

(
b
)

(
c
)

(
d
)

(f
)

(
9
)

1 2

Fi
sc
al
 Y
e
a
r
 2
0
1
8
 W
ii
li
s 
T
o
w
e
r
s
 W
a
t
s
o
n
 R
ep
or
t,
 a
s
 a
dj
us
te
d

A
l
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 t
o
 M
i
d
-
T
e
x

$
 4
,
0
8
2
,
9
0
6

4
3
.
6
5
%

$
 2
,
7
0
3
,
8
9
8

4
3
.
5
5
%

$
 6
,
9
6
4
,
3
0
7

7
1
.
2
4
%

$
 1
8
8
,
3
6
0

1
0
0
.
0
0
%

$
 3
,
7
2
4
,
1
6
8

7
1
.
2
4
%

3 4

Fi
sc
al
 Y
e
a
r
 2
0
1
8
 A
ct
ua
ri
ai
ly
 D
et

er
mi

ne
d 
Be

ne
fi

t 
C
o
s
t
s
 (
L
n
 1
 x
 L
n
 2
)

O
&
M
 a
n
d
 C
ap
it
al
 A
ll
oc
at
io
n 
Fa

ct
or

$
 1
,
7
7
8
,
0
9
2

1
0
0
.
0
0
%

$
 1
,
1
7
7
,
5
3
9

1
0
0
.
0
0
%

$
 4
,
9
6
1
,
2
4
1

1
0
0
.
0
0
%

$
 1
8
8
,
3
6
0

1
0
0
.
0
0
%

$
 2
,
6
5
3
,
0
2
7

1
0
0
.
0
0
%

5

Fi
sc
ai
 Y
e
a
r
 2
0
1
8
 W
il

li
s 
T
o
w
e
r
s
 W
a
t
s
o
n
 B
en

ef
it

 C
o
s
t
s
 T
o
 A
p
p
r
o
v
e

(E
xc

lu
di

ng
 R
e
m
o
v
e
d
 C
o
s
t
 C
en
te
rs
) (
L
n
 3
 x
 L
n
 4
)

$
 1
,
7
7
8
,
0
9
2
$

 1
,
1
7
7
,
5
3
9
$

 4
,
9
6
1
,
2
4
1

$
 1
8
8
,
3
6
0
$

 2
,
6
5
3
,
0
2
7
$

 1
0
,
7
5
8
,
2
6
0

6 7 8 9
S
u
m
m
a
r
y
 o
f 
Co
st
s 
to
 A
p
p
r
o
v
e
 (
1)

:

1
0

1
1

O
&
M
 E
x
p
e
n
s
e
 F
ac

to
r (
W
P
_
F
-
2
.
3
,
 L
n 
2
)

8
0
.
1
5
%

8
0
.
1
5
%

4
0
.
0
5
%

1
9
.
0
3
%

4
0
.
0
5
%

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

T
o
t
a
l
 P
e
n
s
i
o
n
 A
c
c
o
u
n
t
 P
l
a
n

To
ta
l 
P
o
s
t
-
E
m
p
l
o
y
m
e
n
t
 B
en

ef
it

 P
la

n
To
ta
l 
S
u
p
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
a
l
 E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 B
en

ef
it

 P
l
a
n

$
 1
,
4
2
5
,
1
0
8

$
 9
4
3
,
7
7
5

$
 1
,
9
8
7
,
1
3
3

$
 3
5
,
8
3
7
$

 1
,
0
6
2
,
6
2
1

$
 3
,
4
1
2
,
2
4
1

2
,
0
0
6
,
3
9
6

3
5
,
8
3
7

1
6

To
ta
l (
L
n
1
3
 +
 L
n
1
4
 +
 L
n
1
5
)

$
 1
,
4
2
5
,
1
0
8
$

 9
4
3
,
7
7
5
$

 1
,
9
8
7
,
1
3
3
$

 3
5
,
8
3
7
$

 1
,
0
6
2
,
6
2
1

$
 5
,
4
5
4
,
4
7
4

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

N
o
t
e
:

1.
 M
id
-T
ex
 i
s 
pr
op
os
in
g 
th
at
 t
he

 f
is

ca
i 
ye

ar
 2
0
1
8
 W
ii
li
s 
T
o
w
e
r
s
 W
a
t
s
o
n
 a
ct

ua
ri

ai
 a
m
o
u
n
t
s
 s
h
o
w
n
 o
n
 W
P
_
F
-
2
.
3
 a
n
d
 W
P
_
F
-
2
.
3
.
1
,
 b
e
 a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 b
y 
th

e 
R
R
M
 C
it

ie
s 
a
s
 t
he

b
e
n
c
h
m
a
r
k
 a
m
o
u
n
t
s
 t
o 
b
e
 u
se
d 

to
 c
al
cu
ia
te
 t

he
 r
eg

ul
at

or
y 
as

se
t 
or
 l
ia

bi
li

ty
 f
or

 f
ut

ur
e 
pe

ri
od

s.
 T
h
e
 C
o
m
p
a
n
y
 i
s 
re

qu
es

ti
ng

 t
ha
t 
th
e 
b
e
n
c
h
m
a
r
k
 a
m
o
u
n
t
 a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 b
y 
th

e
R
R
M
 C
it

ie
s 
fo
r 
fu
tu
re
 p
er

io
ds

 i
nc
lu
de
 o
nl
y 
th

e 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t
.
 T
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t
 a
tt
ri
bu
ta
bl
e 
to
 c
ap
it
al
 w
ou

ld
 c
on

ti
nu

e 
to
 b
e
 r
ec

or
de

d 
to
 u

ti
li
ty
 p
la
nt
 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he
 o
v
e
r
h
e
a
d

p
r
o
c
e
s
s
 a
s
 d
es
cr
ib
ed
 i
n 
th

e 
C
A
M
.

145



Exhibit C 
Amortization of Regulatory Liability 

146



A
T
M
O
S
 E
N
E
R
G
Y
 C
O
R
P
.
,
 M
I
D
-
T
E
X
 D
I
V
I
S
I
O
N

R
A
T
E
 B
A
S
E
 A
D
J
U
S
T
M
E
N
T
S

T
E
S
T
 Y
E
A
R
 E
N
D
I
N
G
 D
E
C
E
M
B
E
R
 3
1
,
 2
0
1
7

A
M
O
R
T
I
Z
A
T
I
O
N
 O
F
 R
E
G
U
L
A
T
O
R
Y
 L
I
A
B
I
L
I
T
Y

L
i
n
e

N
o
.

Y
e
a
r
 E
n
d
e
d

D
e
c
.
 3
1

B
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 o
f
 Y
e
a
r

R
a
t
e
 B
a
s
e

A
d
j
u
s
t
m
e
n
t

A
m
o
u
n
t

A
n
n
u
a
l

A
m
o
r
t
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
 (
1
)

E
n
d
 o
f
 Y
e
a
r

R
a
t
e
 B
a
s
e

A
d
j
u
s
t
m
e
n
t

A
m
o
u
n
t

B
a
l
a
n
c
e
 a
s
 o
f

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 3
1
,

2
0
1
7

(
a
)

(
b
)

(
c
)

(
d
)

1
2
0
1
7

$
2
8
9
,
8
1
3
,
4
7
9

2
2
0
1
8
 

$
2
8
9
,
8
1
3
,
4
7
9
 
$

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

2
7
7
,
7
3
7
,
9
1
8

3
2
0
1
9

2
7
7
,
7
3
7
,
9
1
8

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

2
6
5
,
6
6
2
,
3
5
6

4
2
0
2
0

2
6
5
,
6
6
2
,
3
5
6

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

2
5
3
,
5
8
6
,
7
9
5

5
2
0
2
1

2
5
3
,
5
8
6
,
7
9
5

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

2
4
1
,
5
1
1
,
2
3
3

6
2
0
2
2

2
4
1
,
5
1
1
,
2
3
3

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

2
2
9
,
4
3
5
,
6
7
1

7
2
0
2
3

2
2
9
,
4
3
5
,
6
7
1

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

2
1
7
,
3
6
0
,
1
1
0

8
2
0
2
4

2
1
7
,
3
6
0
,
1
1
0

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

2
0
5
,
2
8
4
,
5
4
8

9
2
0
2
5

2
0
5
,
2
8
4
,
5
4
8

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

1
9
3
,
2
0
8
,
9
8
6

1
0

2
0
2
6

1
9
3
,
2
0
8
,
9
8
6

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

1
8
1
,
1
3
3
,
4
2
5

1
1

2
0
2
7

1
8
1
,
1
3
3
,
4
2
5

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

1
6
9
,
0
5
7
,
8
6
3

1
2

2
0
2
8

1
6
9
,
0
5
7
,
8
6
3

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

1
5
6
,
9
8
2
,
3
0
1

1
3

2
0
2
9

1
5
6
,
9
8
2
,
3
0
1

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

1
4
4
,
9
0
6
,
7
4
0

1
4

2
0
3
0

1
4
4
,
9
0
6
,
7
4
0

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

1
3
2
,
8
3
1
,
1
7
8

1
5

2
0
3
1

1
3
2
,
8
3
1
,
1
7
8

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

1
2
0
,
7
5
5
,
6
1
6

1
6

2
0
3
2

1
2
0
,
7
5
5
,
6
1
6

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

1
0
8
,
6
8
0
,
0
5
5

1
7

2
0
3
3

1
0
8
,
6
8
0
,
0
5
5

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

9
6
,
6
0
4
,
4
9
3

1
8

2
0
3
4

9
6
,
6
0
4
,
4
9
3

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

8
4
,
5
2
8
,
9
3
2

1
9

2
0
3
5

8
4
,
5
2
8
,
9
3
2

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

7
2
,
4
5
3
,
3
7
0

2
0

2
0
3
6

7
2
,
4
5
3
,
3
7
0

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

6
0
,
3
7
7
,
8
0
8

2
1

2
0
3
7

6
0
,
3
7
7
,
8
0
8

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

4
8
,
3
0
2
,
2
4
7

2
2

2
0
3
8

4
8
,
3
0
2
,
2
4
7

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

3
6
,
2
2
6
,
6
8
5

2
3

2
0
3
9

3
6
,
2
2
6
,
6
8
5

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

2
4
,
1
5
1
,
1
2
3

2
4

2
0
4
0

2
4
,
1
5
1
,
1
2
3

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

2
5

2
0
4
1

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

1
2
,
0
7
5
,
5
6
2

(
0
)

Z
.
O

2
7

N
o
t
e
:

2
8

1.
 T
h
e
 a
nn

ua
l 
am

or
ti

za
ti

on
 o
f 
a
 2
4
 y
ea
r 
re

co
ve

ry
 p
er
io
d 

is
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
he

(
e
)

2
8
9
,
8
1
3
,
4
7
9

147



   
    PUBLIC HEARING    8.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 09/06/2018  
Title: Public Hearing on Budget
Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director 
Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Hold a public hearing to receive community input on the FY 2018-2019 Annual Program of Services (Budget).

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
City Charter and Local Government Code Chapter 102 require that prior to budget adoption, a public hearing be
conducted to allow citizens the opportunity to provide input on the proposed budget.  The following notice was
published on Sunday, August 19, 2018 in the Denton Record Chronicle and placed on the City’s website.  A public
hearing has been scheduled as required.
  

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE
 

 The City Council for the City of Corinth will hold a public hearing on the 2018-2019 Annual Program of Services
(the Budget) on Thursday, September 6, 2018 at 7:00 p.m., in the City Council Chambers located at 3300 Corinth
Parkway, Corinth, Texas.  The meeting will be held for the purpose of receiving community input on the
2018-2019 Annual Program of Services.  All interested citizens are encouraged to attend.

The FY 2018-2019 Proposed Budget was submitted to City Council by July 31, 2018 as required by the City
Charter.  The proposed budget is also available online on the City’s website www.cityofcorinth.com.
 

RECOMMENDATION

148



   
    PUBLIC HEARING    9.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 09/06/2018  
Title: Second Public Hearing on Tax Rate
Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director 
Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Hold a public hearing on a proposal to consider a tax rate, which will exceed the lower of the rollback rate or the
effective tax rate and will increase total tax revenues from properties on the tax roll in the preceding tax year by
9.17 percent.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
According to Property Tax Code Section 26.05(d), the City is required to hold two public hearings on the proposed
tax increase if the City Council is proposing a rate that exceeds the lower of the rollback rate or the effective rate. 
Additional requirements include publishing a quarter-page notice informing the public of the proposed tax rate,
preceding year tax rate, effective & rollback tax rate, formula for estimated tax amount, and the date, time, and
location of the two required public hearings. The  Notice of 2018 Tax Year Proposed Property Tax Rate for the City
of Corinth was published in the Denton Record Chronicle on Tuesday, August 14, 2018, as required by the Texas
Property Tax Code timetables. 
 
The publication notices were calculated based on the highest possible rate the City Council may consider.  The City
Council may adopt any rate below the published tax rate.
 
On August 9, 2018, the City Council voted to publish a FY2018-2019 tax rate of $.53000 that they will consider
approving on September 20, 2018.  This represents a $.00686 tax reduction from the FY2017-2018 tax rate of
$.53686.
 
 

RECOMMENDATION
Please Read the statement below prior to opening the Public Hearing:

This is the second of two public hearings to discuss the FY 2018-2019 proposed tax rate of $.53000 that represents
a $0.00686 tax decrease from the FY 2017-2018 tax rate of $.53686.  The first Public Hearing was held on August
21, 2018.

The City Council will vote on both the FY 2018-2019 Proposed Budget and the proposed tax rate at a meeting
scheduled on September 20, 2018, at 7:00 p.m., located at the Corinth Municipal Council Chambers at 3300
Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas.

Once the Public Hearing is opened, the public is encouraged to express their views.
 

149


	Agenda
	AI_1207_Legislative Briefing
	ATT_Summary_Actions
	ATT_Legislative Update
	AI_1174_Annual Budget Workshop
	AI_1212_Receive a Presentation on the STAR Communities Certification.
	AI_1205_Receive_a_presentation_and_hold_a_discussion_on the SolSmart Designation
	AI_1201_August 2, 2018 Workshop 
	ATT_Minutes
	AI_1202_August 2, 2018 Regular Session
	ATT_Minutes
	AI_1203_August 9, 2018 Workshop Session
	ATT_Minutes
	AI_1204_August 9, 2018 Special Session
	ATT_Minutes
	AI_1210_August 16, 2018 Workshop Session
	ATT_Minutes
	AI_1211_August 16, 2018 Regular Session
	ATT_Minutes
	AI_1209_Settlement between the ATMOS Cities Steering Committee and ATMOS Energy Corp
	ATT_Model Staff Report
	ATT_Resolution
	AI_1178_Public Hearing on Budget
	AI_1200_Second Public Hearing on Tax Rate



